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Overview of the business

Southern Housing Group was 
established in 1901 and owns 
and manages more than 27,000 
homes in London and the South 
East of England, over 40% of 
these in the high value central 
London boroughs. We provide 
housing for over 66,000 residents 
and employ over 900 people 
offering a range of housing 
options for rent and home 
ownership.  We offer support to 
our residents through our social 
and economic investment work 
involving a variety of ground 
breaking projects.

We have a healthy pipeline of 
new housing stock and have 
contracted with the Homes and 
Communities Agency (HCA) 
during 2011/15 to develop 
homes under the new ‘affordable 
housing’ tenure. 

Operating and Financial Review
31 March 2013

The award winning Beveridge 
Mews development in London
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Group structure

Southern Housing Group Limited (SHGL) which is the parent 
organisation and Southern Home Ownership Limited (SHO) are 
Registered Providers (RPs) of affordable housing regulated by the HCA. 
Southern Space Limited (SSL) develops properties for outright sale. SSL 
has a one third share in Triathlon Homes LLP which will provide the 
long term affordable housing at the Olympic Village from July 2013 
and SHGL has a 50% share in the Reading PFI. Southern Development 
Services Limited (SDSL) provides project delivery services for companies 
in the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are published on 
the Group’s website www.shgroup.org.uk.

Our objectives 
and strategies

Our objectives 
and strategies

The Southern Housing Group 
is committed to provide 
housing of a high quality to 
all in housing need.  We aim 
to provide a first class housing 
management service to a range 
of tenures from affordable to 
mid-market rent levels.  In this 
way we unlock the potential of 
people and places.

Our first priority is to meet the 
evolving needs of our residents 
as stated in our service 
standards.  In order to do this 
and to continue to increase 
our new supply of housing we 
are developing a sophisticated 
asset management strategy 
which will maximise the use 
both of our property assets 
and our net rental income.  We 
are building on a strong legacy 
and work to establish and 
strengthen relationships with 
the communities in which 
we operate.
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The shortage of new supply of all 
housing has contributed towards 
a good year for the group’s shared 
ownership and open market sales. 
Our new products have sold well 
and reached better than expected 
prices. There have been a number 
of Government initiatives to help 
stimulate the mortgage market, and 
we are optimistic that the “Help to 
Buy” product will further improve 
the mortgage supply for first 
time buyers.

The mid point of the Affordable 
Rent Programme 2011-15 is a 
good opportunity to take stock of 
our experience thus far. Affordable 
rent is not an appropriate product 
for the benefit dependant, 
particularly in the light of Welfare 
Reform. The new rental tenure 
has proved very popular with low 
paid working households but 
less popular with local authorities 
who, understandably, expect new 
provision by the housing association 
sector to contribute to easing their 
statutory responsibilities towards 
homeless people.

As a short term measure to 
keep the supply of new housing 
moving Affordable Rent has 
made a contribution but it is not 
sustainable in the long term. 
The equation of higher debt to 
compensate for loss of subsidy risks 
exhausting the sector’s capacity 
for new provision and will result in 
housing associations suppressing 
development plans in order to 
restore financial strength to their 
balance sheets.

The year in brief: 2012/13

External influences

The country’s economy has 
remained stubbornly resistant 
to improvement as the   
recession continues.

Both the OECD and the IMF have 
issued gloomy commentaries on the 
state of the nation’s finances during 
2012/13 highlighting the continuing 
falls in construction output (IMF) 
and a high and substantial level of 
unemployment (OECD).

This backdrop creates a difficult 
operational climate for housing 
associations facing a further 
comprehensive spending review 
during the summer of 2013 
where further reductions in public 
spending are sought. The previous 
2010 spending review had reduced 
capital investment in housing from 
£8.4bn for the period 2008-11 to 
£4.5bn for 2011-15, a 63% cut 
in real terms. This represented the 
largest single cut to any capital 
budget across government which 
led to the lamentable shortage of 
new low cost homes produced in 
2012/13 nationally - just 111,250 
against a widely agreed needs 
estimate of 240,000.

Risks and uncertainties 
- our response

The economic situation 
coupled with the government’s 
policy has presented a number 
of risks for the business. We 
have met these by applying 
conservative assumptions to a 
fresh approach. 

We have revised our long term 
business plan to reduce the supply 
of new homes and are targeting 
a mix of market based products 
partially to subsidise the modest 
amount of affordable rented and 
shared ownership housing that we 
wish to continue to provide with 
little or no further capital subsidy. 
We have ensured that we are not 
reliant on market driven products 
and maintain an operating surplus 
on our core management activity 
independent of any market driven 
or sales income.

We are diluting our reliance on 
long term bank debt by looking 
to raise funds from institutional 
investors and have ensured at all 
times that we have a ready supply 
of inexpensive cash available 
to cover all new housing in the 
pipeline not just the projects 
in contract.  

The economic downturn inevitably 
has a disproportionate effect upon 
our residents, who enter 2013/14 
facing the challenges of 
Welfare Reform. 

The Armouries, London
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Providing value for money 
(VfM)

VfM is a key concept embodied 
within our Corporate Plan for 
2012-2015. 

The Group has a robust budgeting 
process that requires all managers 
to operate within agreed financial 
parameters whilst delivering 
improved outcomes for residents. 
We concentrate on delivering and 
demonstrating VfM on a case by 
case basis rather than developing a 
complex measurement system. 
 
We are committed to the 
elimination of waste. During the 
past year we have re-staffed our 
Continuous Service Improvement 
(CSI) Team and worked with 
specialist consultants to eliminate 
waste from our key processes and 
ensure good quality outcomes for 
our residents.

The CSI team has supported a 
number of key projects to drive 
VfM improvements in areas such 
as recruitment and financial 
processes. These projects are 
effective at driving waste from our 
systems whilst improving outcomes 
for residents. 

The Group has a small 
Procurement Team that provides 
support to managers who procure 
goods and services. This team is 
critical to obtaining good VfM 
from everything that the Group 
purchases. The team methodology 
includes a calculation to ensure 
that new contracts really will 
deliver improved VfM.  In 2012/13 
the Group procured contracts 
to a value of £49.3 million. Of 
these £33.3 million were non 
development EU compliant 
procurement projects. These 
projects secured measured cost 
savings totalling around £3.4 
million which equates to around 
10.2% overall. In addition the 
procurement team worked on 
smaller non EU contracts worth 
around £250,000 and delivered 
measured savings of around 
£75,000 equating to around 30%. 

The Group sees VfM as a wider 
concept covering how we make 
the best use of our assets. All 
Departments operate together to 
ensure that we make the best use 
of the assets that we own. 

We made significant cost savings in 
the year 2012/13 over the previous 
year without any damage in our 
quality of service.

During 2012/13 our energies in 
the run up to the introduction 
of Welfare Reform have been 
concentrated on the twin 
objectives of improving our 
knowledge of our residents’ 
circumstances and ensuring that 
the organisation has taken all 
possible measures to mitigate 
the potential impact of the 
changes. We have increased 
staffing levels in customer facing 
areas such as Financial Inclusion 
and Income Recovery and have 
made appropriately pessimistic 
projections in our business plan 
around debt.  We have partnered 
with a specialist agency to improve 
the resident information database.  

Further uncertainty relating to 
our income stream was presented 
until very recently by the regulated 
rent regime from 2015.  We have 
managed this risk by reducing 
expected rental income inflation in 
our business plan going forward 
and the newly announced formula 
outperforms our assumptions. 

The Affordable Rent programme 
has been a journey of discovery 
for the Group, and not without 
its challenges.  However given our 
assessment of the new tenure we 
are delighted with the progress we 
have made and the outcome for 
our residents. We have prioritised 
working households but still 
housed 14% of applicants on 
benefits. The incomes of those we 
are housing – average £31,000 pa 
in London and £25,000 pa outside 
London – emphasise very well that 
this is an important contribution to 
the economy of London and the 
south east.

The Vega building in Hove
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Rent arrears

Following a period of 
sustained reduction rent 
arrears levels have held steady 
over the last three years. 

This is a sound achievement when 
taking into account the financial 
pressures that residents are under 
as disposable incomes and benefit 
entitlements have reduced over 
this period.  

SHG 2012/13 SHG 2011/12 Peer Group 
Average 
2011/12

Management costs per home £ 1,184 1,156 1,201

All maintenance costs per home £ 860 1,021 1,087

Service costs per home £ 566 576 587

Total operating costs per home £ 3,412 3,415 4,318

Social housing lettings Operating margin % 26% 23% 29% 

Rent loss between lettings per home 1.50% 1.33% 0.96%

Overheads as percentage of income % 18% 23% 12.30%

Chief Executive pay per home £ 6.57 6.77  

Ratio Chief Executive’s emoluments to average staff emoluments (excl pension) 6.58:1 6.73:1

Board and Executive pay per home £ 31.73 33.07

Current rent arrears as percentage of rent due -social housing properties 4.04% 4.08% 4.71%

Current rent arrears % - affordable housing properties 0.83% N/A

Average time in days to relet social housing property 23 23.46 28.96

Resident satisfaction overall 84% 81% 80%

Value for money in our 
operational performance

Our operational performance 
is monitored by the Board and 
by our residents and is a critical 
focus of our Corporate Plan.  We 
seek continuously to improve our 
operational performance through 
using system thinking principles, 
a methodology that is used to 
improve both the process and levels 
of performance.

Financial value for money indicators
Benchmarking: how we compare with others

Despite this, evictions as a result 
of rent arrears have reduced over 
the last year showing the general 
approach of early intervention 
and support through the financial 
inclusion service is working.  

In response to the proposed 
introduction of Universal Credit we 
have put in place a fundamental 
review of our income collection 
process in order to identify the 
changes needed to ensure that 
our arrangements remain robust 
and effective. This work is being 
completed alongside the work of 
the Welfare Reform Strategy Group 
which has focused our approach 
to assessing the impact of the 
government’s Welfare Reform  
changes as well as informing the 
action needed to minimise the 
potential adverse impact to the 
Group and to our residents.

% Rent arrears against annual debit
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Properties to be re-let

The speed with which we 
turn around our properties 
to be re-let fell slightly 
in 2012/13 following 
significant improvement in 
the previous two years.  

This is the result of the 
implementation of changes 
to the structure of the lettings 
teams during the year to be 
better placed to manage the 
increased diversity of tenures 
within our portfolio.  

Gas servicing

In 2012/13 we consistently 
achieved valid gas safety 
certificates for 99.8% of 
our homes despite a slight 
reduction in the year end 
position of 99.5%.  

We continue to work with our 
service provider to strive to 
reach maximum compliancy.

% of units unlet
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Day to day repairs

Performance for emergency 
repairs saw 97.6% of 
requested work completed 
within 24 hours of being 
reported. 

This high level of performance 
continues the trend of sustained 
improvement seen over the last 
seven years.  

Decent homes

Our comprehensive 
reinvestment programme 
enabled us to reach 100% 
decency in our housing 
stock by the required date of 
December 2010.  

We continue to maintain 
100% decency through our 
comprehensive programme of 
improvement works.  

% Emergency repairs completed on time
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Social and economic 
regeneration

Our social and economic 
regeneration work and the support 
we give to residents to improve 
their quality of life has always been 
important to Southern Housing 
Group. However in the light of 
current economic pressures and 
in particular taking into account 
the impact of the Government’s 
welfare reform agenda this work 
has become increasingly central 
to our operations. Our main focus 
this year has been tackling financial 
exclusion and poverty. We have 
invested more of our resources 
into financial inclusion to support 
residents and in partnership with 
the voluntary sector in Hackney in 
particular we have secured £1m 
for a 5 year Big Lottery funded 
programme to improve financial 
confidence across the borough. 

We have established work 
experience and mentoring 
programmes and are developing 
a range of business and social 
enterprise opportunities for young 
people who have not benefitted 
from mainstream programmes. 

We have supported 500 residents 
on their pathway to work, engaged 
144 in training or volunteering 
opportunities and assisted 81 
residents into paid employment. 

A greener future

‘Towards a Greener Southern 
Housing Group’, the Group’s 
updated Environmental 
Sustainability Strategy was 
launched outlining the six 
objectives and priority areas for 
the next few years. Fuel poverty 
and providing comfortable, energy 
efficient homes with low running 
costs is central to the new 
strategy which also includes new 
objectives about Climate Change 
Adaptation and our positive 
environmental impact.

Development performance  

In 2012/13 we completed 822 
new homes and started work on 
92 during the year. There were 
1,623 homes in the development 
pipeline at the end of the year 

including 401 social rented, 
420 for affordable rent, 46 for 
intermediate rent, 44 for market 
rent, 337 for shared ownership and 
375 for market sale.

As a result of the Group’s decision 
to limit its exposure to the new 
‘affordable rent’ tenure there were 
fewer starts in 2012/13 although 
we continue to work through the 
pipeline of socially rented homes 
funded by grant allocated under 
previous programmes.

Development highlights

The Group completed an impressive 
number of new homes in the year 
from the final phase of Parkside 
Place, the impressive urban 
redevelopment of the old Market 
Estate in Islington to Maison Dieu 
a niche development in Dover.  
In February the Prince of Wales, 
President of The Prince’s Foundation 
for Building Community visited 
Highbury Gardens in Islington, a 
best practice example of how to 
successfully bring well designed 
homes to the Capital developed 
by the group in partnership with 
a private developer.  The Group 
also entered the final stages of 
completing the 1,379 homes on the 
Olympic Village as part of Triathlon 
in the post Games era which are due 
to be available for rent later in 2013.

% Emergency repairs completed on time
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COMMittEES

the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reports to the 
Board on the operation of our risk 
management and internal control 
arrangements.  It recommends the 
appointment of internal and external 
auditors, considers the scope of their 
work and the reports produced. It 
reviews in detail the annual financial 
statements and recommends them to 
the Board.

the Customer 
Services Committee 

The Customer Services Committee 
considers all matters relating to 
the provision of services to our 
residents. This includes considering 
strategic policies as well as reviewing 
operational performance covering 
all aspects of services provided to 
residents. It also considers the way 
in which we involve residents in 
service delivery and other aspects of 
our work.   We have five regional 
Resident Services Panels (RSP) each of 
which is Chaired by a resident.  Each 
panel meets  on a quarterly basis to 
discuss the performance of the Group 
in its region. The Chairman of each 
panel is invited to sit on the Customer 
Services Committee ensuring that 
the RSPs play an integral part in the 
governance of the Group.

the Development Committee

The Development Committee 
considers matters relating to our 
Development Strategy including 
the development of new properties 
and stock reinvestment. It also has 
oversight of the work of the Parkside 
Place (formerly known as Market 
Estate) Committee and monitors 
performance in relation to property 
sales and first lettings of intermediate 
rent properties.

Tenure Completions Starts Completions Starts

  Social Rent 434 24 214 0

  Affordable Rent 55 16 0 148

  Intermediate Rent 63 0 85 0

  Shared Ownership 155 34 81 100

  Market Sale 115 18 12 40

Total 822 92 392 288

2011/122012/13

GOVERnAnCE

the Board 

The Board is responsible for the 
business of Southern Housing 
Group which includes overseeing 
and directing our activities, 
formulating future strategies and 
plans, maintaining an overview 
and monitoring the work of its 
subsidiaries and committees. The 
Board meets four times per year 
for regular business and once for a 
seminar to discuss strategic issues.  
Board members serve a maximum 
of three continuous terms of three 
years. The Board members who 
served during the year are listed 
on page 1 and attendance at 
meetings on page 10.
 
The Board and each of its 
subsidiary Boards and Committees 
has detailed terms of reference 
which are established and 
monitored by the  Parent Board. 
The terms of reference include the 
frequency of meetings which 
range from two to four meetings 
per year.

The Board fully supports and 
complies with the principles 
set out in the National Housing 
Federation’s Code with the 
following exceptions:   

• The shareholding membership of 
   Southern Housing Group is 
   limited to Board members only, 

• The Group Chairman who is 
   an internal appointment will 
   recommence his term of nine 
   years office when he takes on 
   the role of Chairman in July 2013        
   in line with Southern Housing 
   Group established policy. 

Members of the  SHGL  Board are 
paid for their services to increase 
our ability to attract and retain 
high calibre members and to 
improve mechanisms for their 
performance appraisal 
and development.

The level of Board member 
remuneration was last reviewed 
by the Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee during 
2010/11 where it was determined 
that payment should be retained at 
the existing levels until the 
next review.

the current 
annual rates of 
payment are:

Chairman:  £15,000
Member and 
Chairman of 
Committee or 
subsidiary Board: £  7,000
Member:    £  5,000
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Group/
Company

Committee Board Remuneration 
Nominations

Treasury Customer 
Services

Audit Development Other Directorship

Andrew 
McIntyre

4 (5) 3 (3) 1 (4) Ernst & Young Trustees Ltd.

Anthony 
Bourne

4 (5) 3 (3) 3 (4) BMJ Publishing Group
Bioquell PLC
Barchester
Grove Limited 

Tom Dacey 5 (5)

Chris Hampson 5 (5) 3 (3) 4 (4) Look Ahead Housing & Care

Jim Hitch 5 (5) 3 (3) English Language Service Ltd.

Preth Rao 5 (5) 4 (4) 4 (4)

Tim Richards 5 (5) 4 (4) Aston Rose (West End) Ltd.

Justin Chittock 5 (5) 4 (4) 4 (4) Linden Business Consulting Ltd.

Malcolm Groves 5 (5) 3 (4) Island Cottages Ltd.
Sustainable Chale Ltd.
Chale Recreation Ground Ltd.
IOW County Club Ltd.
Independent Arts Ltd.
Osborne Court Mgt. (Wokingham) 
Ltd.

Paul Rees 4 (4) 4 (4) Chairman of CAB Waverley Board
Member CAB Surrey, Trustee of 
Greensleeves Homes Trust
Chair of Audit Committee, RCN

Steve Johnson 2 (2) 1 (2) Independent Advice Services Ltd
Advanced Case Management 
Solutions Ltd.
VCS Insurance (Guernsey) Ltd.
Advice Services Alliance
LawWorks
The Access to Justice Foundation
The School for Social Entrepreneurs 
The Change Account Mutual 
Partnership (Committee Member)

Arthur 
Merchant

1 (1) 2 (2) Director – Hertfordshire Chamber of 
Commerce, Aster Housing Group 
and subsidiary Synergy Housing 
Group, Raven Housing Trust

Jane Hives 1 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1)

Lara Oydele 0 (1) 0 (1) 0 (1)

Southern Housing Group

Board attendance and significant other directorships

Number of meetings attended out of (Total number possible for individual)

the Remuneration and nominations Committee 

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee considers matters relating to Board remuneration, recruitment of 
new Board, subsidiary Board and Committee members, succession planning  for all Boards and Committees , skills 
training, salary structure, pension arrangements, senior staff remuneration, non contractual benefits for all staff  and 
the assessment of the performance of the Board  and its Members and its subsidiary Boards and Committees  and  
their Members. Succession planning helps to balance the composition of the Boards and Committees in order to 
reflect the profile of our residents and to ensure that there is the correct mix of skills on each Committee and Board.  

the treasury Committee

The Treasury Committee considers in detail all aspects of treasury management including the Treasury Strategy, long 
term funding requirements and ensures that loan covenants are maintained.

Members who have retired during the year
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Accounting policies
There have been no significant 
changes to the accounting policies 
in the year.

Group/Company SDSL

Committee Board

Anthony Bourne        1 (1)

Tom Dacey 1 (1)

Rosemary Farrar 0 (0)

Members who have retired during the year

Alene Wilton  1 (1)

Group/Company SHO

Committee Board

Jim Hitch        2 (2)

Katherine Lyons 2 (2)

Hugh Stebbing 2 (2)

Dale Meredith 2 (2)

Members who have retired during the year

Jane Hives 1 (1)

Number of meetings attended out of (Total number possible for individual)

Number of meetings attended out of (Total number possible for individual)

Group/Company SSL

Committee Board

Jim Hitch        4 (4)

Katherine Lyons 4 (4)

Hugh Stebbing 4 (4)

Dale Meredith 4 (4)

Tom Dacey 3 (4)

Rosemary Farrar 4 (4)

Members who have retired during the year

Jane Hives 1 (1)

Number of meetings attended out of (Total number possible for individual)

Group/
Company

Committee Board Remuneration 
Nominations

Treasury Customer 
Services

Audit Development Other Directorship

Andrew 
McIntyre

4 (5) 3 (3) 1 (4) Ernst & Young Trustees Ltd.

Anthony 
Bourne

4 (5) 3 (3) 3 (4) BMJ Publishing Group
Bioquell PLC
Barchester
Grove Limited 

Tom Dacey 5 (5)

Chris Hampson 5 (5) 3 (3) 4 (4) Look Ahead Housing & Care

Jim Hitch 5 (5) 3 (3) English Language Service Ltd.

Preth Rao 5 (5) 4 (4) 4 (4)

Tim Richards 5 (5) 4 (4) Aston Rose (West End) Ltd.

Justin Chittock 5 (5) 4 (4) 4 (4) Linden Business Consulting Ltd.

Malcolm Groves 5 (5) 3 (4) Island Cottages Ltd.
Sustainable Chale Ltd.
Chale Recreation Ground Ltd.
IOW County Club Ltd.
Independent Arts Ltd.
Osborne Court Mgt. (Wokingham) 
Ltd.

Paul Rees 4 (4) 4 (4) Chairman of CAB Waverley Board
Member CAB Surrey, Trustee of 
Greensleeves Homes Trust
Chair of Audit Committee, RCN

Steve Johnson 2 (2) 1 (2) Independent Advice Services Ltd
Advanced Case Management 
Solutions Ltd.
VCS Insurance (Guernsey) Ltd.
Advice Services Alliance
LawWorks
The Access to Justice Foundation
The School for Social Entrepreneurs 
The Change Account Mutual 
Partnership (Committee Member)

Arthur 
Merchant

1 (1) 2 (2) Director – Hertfordshire Chamber of 
Commerce, Aster Housing Group 
and subsidiary Synergy Housing 
Group, Raven Housing Trust

Jane Hives 1 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1) 1 (1)

Lara Oydele 0 (1) 0 (1) 0 (1)

Our Hackney youth mentors
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Group 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Housing properties at cost less depreciation 1,737.4 1,659.2 1,631.1 1,572.6 1,503.8 

Less: Social Housing and other grants (881.9) (847.5) (839.6) (782.4) (737.6)

855.5 811.7 791.5 790.2 766.2

Other tangible fixed assets 39.5 39.9 40.4 39.8 38.4 

Investments excluding JV liabilities 103.0 100.1 87.1 105.5 3.3 

Net current assets/(liabilities) including JVs 72.2 80.2 41.4 7.4 25.9 

1,070.2 1,031.9 960.4 942.9 833.8 

Loans due after one year 737.9 741.7 689.0 686.4 580.8 

Other long term liabilities 22.9 15.8 9.7 20.2 23.5 

Reserves 309.4 274.4 261.7 236.3 229.5 

1,070.2 1,031.9 960.4 942.9 833.8 

Statistics

Operating margin 30% 23% 26% 21% 21%

Interest cover 226% 216% 174% 143% 138%

Gearing 62% 66% 62% 66% 59%

Units of accommodation in management 27,953 27,213 25,847 25,480 25,089

Group Financial Results, Five year summary
Financial performance

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Total turnover 186.3 140.2 130.4 134.0 128.1 

Less: share of joint ventures’ turnover (5.6) (5.1) (0.6) (0.3) (0.3)

Group and Association turnover 180.7 135.1 129.8 133.7 127.8 

Operating costs excluding impairment (121.9) (102.3) (96.7) (99.9) (99.8)

Impairment (4.8) (1.6) 0.4 (6.3) (3.9)

Operating costs    (126.7) (103.9) (96.3) (106.2) (103.7)

Operating surplus 54.0 31.2 33.5 27.5 24.1 

Share of operating surplus in joint venture 3.4 4.0 - - - 

Operating surplus incl. joint ventures 57.4 35.2 33.5 27.5 24.1 

Surplus on sale of fixed assets  13.4 10.4 6.3 4.6 6.7 

Net interest payable and similar charges (27.7) (24.5) (28.2) (24.1) (22.2)

Fair value writeback - - 9.5 - - 

Joint venture net interest (3.4) (2.9) - - - 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities (0.9) (0.3) - - - 

Surplus for the year 38.8 17.9 21.1 8.0 8.6 

Operating margin 30.8% 25.1% 25.7% 20.5% 18.8%

Operating margin excluding impairment 33.4% 26.2% 25.4% 25.2% 21.9%

Group Consolidated

income and Expenditure account

Balance Sheet
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income and Expenditure account: Core Activities 

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Total turnover - Group 52.9 15.5 10.6 17.5 21.7 

Turnover excl. joint ventures 47.3 10.5 9.9 17.2 21.4 

Operating costs excluding impairment (27.0) (8.1) (9.0) (12.6) (17.2)

Impairment (1.9) (0.1) 0.1 (0.5) (1.0)

Total operating costs    (28.9) (8.2) (8.9) (13.1) (18.2)

Operating surplus on property sales 18.4 2.3 1.0 4.1 3.2 

Operating surplus incl. joint ventures 21.8 6.3 1.0 4.1 3.2 

Surplus on sale of fixed assets  13.4 10.4 6.3 4.6 6.7 

Fair value writeback - - 9.5 - - 

Joint venture interest payable (3.4) (2.9) - - - 

Surplus for the year 31.8 13.8 16.8 8.7 9.9 

Operating margin 41.2% 40.6% 9.4% 23.4% 14.7%

Operating margin excluding impairment 44.8% 41.3% 8.5% 26.3% 19.4%

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Total turnover 133.4 124.6 119.9 116.5 106.4 

Operating costs excluding impairment (94.9) (94.3) (87.7) (87.3) (82.6)

Impairment (2.9) (1.5) 0.3 (5.8) (2.9)

Operating costs    (97.8) (95.7) (87.4) (93.1) (85.5)

Operating surplus 35.6 28.9 32.5 23.4 20.9 

Net Interest payable (27.7) (24.5) (28.2) (24.1) (22.2)

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities (0.9) (0.3) - - - 

Surplus for the year 7.0 4.1 4.3 (0.7) (1.3)

Operating margin 26.7% 23.2% 27.1% 20.1% 19.6%

Operating margin excluding impairment 28.9% 24.4% 26.9% 25.1% 22.4%

income and Expenditure account: Property Sales & Joint Ventures

NB: 1. The accounts for 2008/09 reflect the adoption of the Statement of Recommended Practice 2008 (SORP), which resulted in a 
change in the accounting policy for the first tranche sales of shared ownership properties. The tables above have been restated to 
show the effect on the results and balance as though the policy were in force in previous years.
2. The accounts for 2010/11 reflect the adoption of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 2010 update, which resulted in a 
change of policy for the treatment of negative goodwill arising on acquisition. The tables above have been restated to show the effect 
on the results and balances as though the policy were in effect in previous years.

Group Consolidated
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turnover and 
operating surplus

Turnover has increased by £45.6m 
(34%) in 2012/13 whilst operating 
costs have increased by £22.8m 
(22%).  This has increased the 
operating margin to 31%.  Much 
of this increase in income however 
was the result of excellent 
property sales and the underlying 
performance of the core operations 
improved more steadily by 24% on 
last year from 23% to 27%.

Surplus

The 2012/13 surplus of £38.8m 
shows a strong performance for 
the Group. There is an underlying 
increase in surplus on core activities 
of £3.0m compared with the 
year to 31 March 2012 and an 
additional £17.9m (130%) in 
surplus on sales of property. 

Like other social housing providers 
which continue to develop new 
social housing for rent the Group 
develops this with a mixture of 
housing for outright market sale 
and shared ownership.  Profits 
on housing sold are used to cross 
subsidise our social housing.  
During 2012/13 the Group also 
sold a limited amount of social 
housing assets to other registered 
providers as part of a geographical 
stock rationalisation programme.

Reserves

Our surplus of £38.8m has resulted 
in accumulated revenue reserves 
growing to £309.4m at 31st 
March 2013.  We will invest this 
in providing new homes, having 
ensured that we are able to cover 
the ongoing high quality of our 
homes and services.
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impairment

We have reviewed the values of 
assets included in the Balance 
Sheet in light of current economic 
conditions to ensure that these 
values do not exceed the future 
benefits from the continued use of 
these assets. In particular we have 
reviewed the current values of our 
land held for future development 
to make sure that where the 
expected benefits will not reach 
the original values we have 
reduced these to the level of those 
expected benefits. The net effect 
of this has been to charge £4.8m 
impairment (2012: £1.6m).

Pension costs

The most recent Southern 
Housing Group scheme triennial 
valuation was completed during 
the year 2010/11. An up to date 
valuation is expected early in 
2013/14.  The Group is currently 
planning for the effect of the new 
‘auto enrolment’ legislation which 
will become effective for SHG from 
October 2013.

treasury management

As at 31 March 2013 the group 
had £780m of committed debt 
funding with £745m drawn 
(2012/13: £748m). The group 
seeks to hold a diversified debt 
portfolio with 20% coming from 
the capital markets (2012/13: 
19%) and 80% from banks and 
building societies (2012/13: 81%).

The Group has limited refinancing 
risk in the next five years with less 
than 10% of the debt maturing 
during this period.

Gift aid

In recent years Group policy has 
been to gift aid most surpluses 
from subsidiaries at a level to 
minimise their Corporation Tax 
liability. This year SHO has gift 
aided £18.5m (2012: £6.6m) and 
has retained a profit of £4.6m 
to be taxed in order to boost its 
reserves by the net £3.9m. SSL 
gift aided £1m (2012: £0.9m) 
and SDSL gift aided £1.5m (2012: 
£1.4m) to the Group.

interest

Net interest payable has increased 
by £3.2m in the year but remains 
at historically low rates. 

tangible fixed assets

The value of housing properties 
at cost has increased to £1,818m 
(2012: £1,730m) due to the 
completion of over 180 affordable 
new homes.

Loans

Housing loans have decreased by 
£3m during the year to £745m. 
Cash balances held at 31 March 
2013 were £6m greater than at 31 
March 2012.

Use of reserves
 

£m % £m %

Investment in Housing stock 1,737 1,659 

Other net Assets 39 57 

1,776 1,716 

Funded by:

Reserves 309 17% 274 16%

Grants 882 50% 847 49%

Loans (net of cash) 585 33% 595 35%

Total Funding 1,776 100% 1,716 100%

Group funding Profile - at 31 March 2013

Bank debt

Non-Bank debt

Undrawn Bank debt

£35m (4%)

£146m (19%)

£599m (77%)

Group Funding Profile - 
at 31 March 2013

2013 2012
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As at 31 March 2013 the Group had available £35m undrawn funds and £156m cash in hand being total 
liquidity of £191m which is sufficient to fund all contractual commitments and in addition all non contracted 
pipeline schemes.

The Group’s Treasury Management Policy sets out the framework within which we work to protect against 
and control risk and exposure in respect of our borrowings and cash holdings.

In order to achieve this, the Policy provides a strategy for:
i) Group borrowings and subsequent debt management.
ii) Investment of surplus funds - both short and long term.
iii) Relationship with bankers, lenders and advisors.

All the registered providers in the Group have the ability in their rules to manage interest rate risk. A total 
of seven stand alone derivatives have been transacted by SHGL with a notional principal of £225m which 
have continued to provide a saving in interest cost during 2012/13. We do not use derivatives for speculative 
purposes or in such a way that exposes the Group further to market forces. The Treasury Committee 
regularly reviews the creditworthiness of the parties with whom we do business. 

Our treasury policy is to have a mix of fixed/hedged, variable and index linked interest rate loans. Under 
normal circumstances rates will not be fixed/hedged on more than 70% of total debt.

Group Debt Maturity Profile at 31 March 2013
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The average cost of interest for the Group during the year was 4.2% (2011/12: 4.2%) which continues to reflect 
the low interest rate environment.  

The Group has specific named authorised deposit counterparties where 
the maximum exposure and terms limits are £10m up to 12 months or 
£15m up to 3 months.  For other non-named deposit counterparties 
where at the time of the investment hold a short-term credit rating of 
a-1/P-1/F1 (or better) the maximum exposure and terms limits are £3m 
up to 6 months or £5m up to 3 months.  For deposits with the Group’s 
principal clearing bank there is no maximum deposit amount for terms 
not exceeding 3 months. 
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Statement of 
Compliance

in preparing this Operating 
and Financial Review, the 
Board has followed the 
principles set out in the 
2010 SORP, Accounting for 
Registered Social 
Housing Providers.
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Statement of 
Board’s Responsibilities 

The Board is responsible for 
preparing the Annual Report 
and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law 
and regulations. 

The Friendly and Industrial and 
Provident Societies Act 1968 
and registered social housing 
legislation require the Board to 
prepare financial statements for 
each financial year which give 
a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Association 
and of the surplus or deficit for 
that period. In preparing these 
financial statements, the Board is 
required to: 

• select suitable accounting   
 policies and then apply 
 them consistently; 

• make judgments and estimates  
 that are reasonable 
   and prudent; 

• state whether applicable   
 accounting standards have   
 been followed, subject to any  
 material departures disclosed  
 and explained in the financial  
 statements; and 

• prepare the financial statements  
 on the going concern basis  
 unless it is inappropriate to   
 presume that the Group and  
 the Association will continue 
 in business. 

Report Of The Board
For the year ended 31 March 2013

Unique designs are key to 
our developments



19Report of the Board

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of 
the Group and the Association and enable it to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Friendly and Industrial & Provident Societies 
Act 1968 and the Industrial & Provident Societies (Group Accounts) 
Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the 
Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England from April 2012. 
It has general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the 
assets of the Association and to prevent and detect fraud and 
other irregularities. 

The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the 
Group’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions. 

Corporate governance 

The Board confirms that the Group has adopted and complied with the 
principal recommendations of the National Housing Federation’s Code 
of Governance. 

internal controls 

The Board is responsible for the 
Group’s system of internal controls 
and for reviewing its effectiveness. 
Such a system is designed to 
manage and reduce, rather than 
to eliminate, the risk of failure 
to achieve business objectives. It 
can provide only reasonable, and 
not absolute, assurance against 
material misstatement or loss. 
We operate ongoing processes 
for identifying, evaluating and 
managing the significant risks 
faced by the Group. They have 
been in place for the year to 31 
March 2013 and up to the date of 
the approval of the Annual Report 
and the Financial Statements. The 
processes are reviewed at least 
annually by the Board and twice 
annually by the Audit Committee. 

The Food Bank at 
Barking Riverside
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Risk assessment 

Our objectives are contained 
within the Corporate Plan. 
There is a process for cascading 
these objectives throughout 
the organisation to each 
operational team and to 
individual employees’ objectives. 
Assessment of resultant risk is 
mapped for each entity within 
the group. Our risk management 
strategy includes requirements 
for formal risk assessments to 
be presented to the Board for 
discussion and approval. 

Control environment 

Authority, responsibility and 
accountability are set out in the 
following ways:

• standing orders and    
 delegated authorities

• policies and procedures   
 manuals in all key areas

• codes of conduct for members  
 of Boards and committees, and  
 for staff 

• staff job descriptions and   
 supervisory procedures

information 

There is a timely system for 
reporting on progress against 
our plans. The Boards and their 
committees receive regular and 
extensive reports on all key areas 
of performance. 

Monitoring
 
We have a comprehensive 
internal audit programme 
which is undertaken by KPMG, 
Chartered Accountants. The 
internal audit programme is 
designed to review key areas of 
risk. The internal auditors report 
to the Director of Compliance. 
Each audit assignment is 
sponsored by a senior director 
who approves the scope of 
work and takes responsibility for 
ensuring that recommendations 
are acted upon. Progress 
on completing work on 
recommendations is monitored 
by the Director of Compliance. 
KPMG meets quarterly with 
the Chief Executive and reports 
to each meeting of the Audit 
Committee on their recent and 
prospective activity. They also 
meet informally with the Chair 
of Audit Committee. 

The risk management 
process incorporates reviews 
of high level risks across 
the Group, including the 
identification of newly 
emerging risks. 

Both the internal audit and risk 
management activities incorporate 
follow up reporting on actions 
identified, thereby improving the 
control environment. 

Review of effectiveness 

The Board has reviewed the 
effectiveness of the internal 
controls through the work of the 
Audit Committee, which reports 

regularly to the Board. In addition 
the Chief Executive has submitted to 
the Board a detailed report on the 
operation of internal controls during 
the year under review and up to 
the date of approval of this report. 
The Board confirms no weaknesses 
were found in the internal controls 
for the year ended 31 March 2013 
which might otherwise have resulted 
in material losses, contingencies or 
uncertainties which require disclosure 
in the financial statements.

Disclosure of information 
to auditors 

The Board members who held office 
at the date of approval of this Board 
members’ report confirm that, so far 
as they are each aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which 
the Group’s auditors are unaware; 
and each Board member has taken 
all the steps that they ought to have 
taken as a Board member to make 
themselves aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish 
that the Group’s auditors are aware 
of that information.
 

Auditors
 
A resolution is to be proposed 
at the annual general meeting 
for the reappointment of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
as the auditor. 

Andrew McIntyre 
Chairman
On behalf of the Board
8 July 2013
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We have audited the financial 
statements (the ‘‘financial statements’’) 
of Southern Housing Group Limited 
for the year ended 31 March 2013 
which comprise the Consolidated  and 
Association Income and Expenditure 
Account, the Consolidated and 
Association Balance Sheets, the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, 
the Consolidated and Association 
Statement of Total Recognised 
Surpluses and Deficits, the Consolidated 
and Association Statement of Historical 
Cost Surpluses and Deficits  and the 
related notes. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is applicable law and 
United Kingdom Accounting Standards 
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 

Respective responsibilities of 
the Board and auditors

As explained more fully in the 
Statement of the Group Board’s 
Responsibilities set out on pages 18-
20, the Board is responsible for the 
preparation of financial statements 
which give a true and fair view.  Our 
responsibility is to audit and express 
an opinion on the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law 
and International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with 
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors. 

This report, including the opinions, 
has been prepared for and only for 
the association members as a body 
in accordance with Section 9(1) and 
Section 13(5) of the Friendly and 
Industrial and Provident Societies 
Act 1968 and the Housing and 
Regeneration Act 2008 and for no 
other purpose. We do not, in giving 
these opinions, accept or assume 

responsibility for any other purpose 
or to any other person to whom this 
report is shown or into whose hands 
it may come save where expressly 
agreed by our prior consent 
in writing.

Scope of the audit of the 
financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements sufficient 
to give reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes 
an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate 
to the group’s and association’s 
circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates 
made by the board; and the overall 
presentation of the financial 
statements. In addition, we read 
all the financial and non-financial 
information in the report and financial 
statements to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited 
financial statements.  If we become 
aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we 
consider the implications for 
our report. 
 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the
  state of the group’s and   
 association’s affairs as at 31  
 March 2013 and of the group’s  
 and association’s income and  
 expenditure and the group’s 
     cash flows for the year 
     then ended; and

• have been properly prepared  
 in accordance with the Industrial  
 and Provident Societies Acts,  
 1965 to 2002, and the Industrial  
 and Provident Societies (Group  
 Accounts) Regulations 1969, the  
 Housing and Regeneration Act  
 2008 and the Accounting   
 Direction for Social Housing in  
 England 2012. 

Matters on which we are 
required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect 
of the following matters where the 
Industrial and Provident Societies Acts, 
1965 to 2002 require us to report to 
you if, in our opinion: 
• a satisfactory system of control  
 over transactions has not been  
 maintained; or
• the association has not kept   
 proper accounting records; or
• the financial statements are not  
 in agreement with the books of  
 account; or
• we have not received all the   
 information and explanations we  
 need for our audit. 

Kim Green 
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and 
Statutory Auditors
London
10 July 2013

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF SOUTHERN HOUSING GROUP LIMITED FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTHERN HOUSING 
GROUP LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

The maintenance and integrity of the Southern Housing 
Association Limited (of ‘Southern Housing Group’) website 
is the responsibility of the group board; the work carried 
out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these 
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility 
for any changes that may have occurred to the financial 
statements since they were initially presented on the website. 
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation 
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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All turnover and operating costs for the current and prior years are attributable to continuing operations. 
The notes on pages 26 to 63 form part of these financial statements.

Note Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Total turnover 186,257 140,170 161,431 132,392 

Less: share of joint ventures’ turnover (5,553) (5,032) - - 

Group and association turnover 2 180,704 135,138 161,431 132,392 

Operating costs    2 (126,706) (103,937) (108,041) (98,566)

Operating surplus  53,998 31,201 53,390 33,826 

Share of operating surplus in joint ventures 13 3,363 4,024 - - 

Total operating surplus including share in 
joint ventures

57,361 35,225 53,390 33,826 

Surplus on sale of fixed assets  5 13,351 10,422 9,281 6,560 

Interest receivable and other income  6 2,174 4,409 1,931 4,270 

Interest payable and similar charges

   Group 7 (29,582) (28,880) (29,285) (28,609)

   Joint ventures 7 (3,356) (2,940) - - 

Other finance costs 8 (291) (58) (291) (58)

Surplus on ordinary activities 
before taxation

9 39,657 18,178 35,026 15,989 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 10 (904) (260) - - 

Surplus for the year  38,753 17,918 35,026 15,989 

     

Audited Financial Statements of the Group

income and Expenditure Accounts

Note Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Surplus for the year from parent and subsidiaries 38,746 16,834 35,026 15,989 

Share of surplus in joint ventures 7 1,084 - -

Surplus for the year 38,753 17,918 35,026 15,989 

Unrealised surplus/(deficit) on investments 24 424 (462) 424 (462)

Actuarial loss relating to pension schemes 27 (4,215) (4,717) (4,215) (4,717)

Total recognised surplus relating to the year 34,962 12,739 31,235 10,810 

    

Statement of total Recognised Surpluses and Deficits

Historical cost surpluses and deficits were identical to those shown in the income and expenditure account.
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Note Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Tangible fixed assets 

   Housing properties at cost less depreciation 11 1,737,353 1,659,158 1,644,604 1,565,738 

   Less: Social Housing Grant and other grants   11 (881,873) (847,434) (831,996) (796,141)

   Net book value of housing properties 855,480 811,724 812,608 769,597 

   Other tangible fixed assets  12 39,546 39,947 39,171 39,563 

   Total tangible fixed assets 895,026 851,671 851,779 809,160 

Investments

   Investments at market value             13 12,644 12,305 12,644 12,330 

   Investment in subsidiaries 13 -  -  11,599 9,980 

   Investment in joint ventures - share of gross assets 13 88,958 86,345 25 -  

   Investment in joint ventures - share of gross liabilities 13 (87,512) (84,827) -  -  

   Investment properties 13 926 926 926 926 

   Homebuy and starter home initiatives 13 9,171 9,500 300 300 

   Less: Social Housing Grant 13 (8,714) (8,998) (300) (300)

910,499 866,922 876,973 832,396 

Current assets  

   Properties for sale 14 29,952 49,988 17,825 28,177 

   Debtors         15 23,273 22,237 28,508 21,116 

   Cash at bank and in hand    155,986 149,726 121,364 140,467 

209,211 221,951 167,697 189,760 

Creditors:  amounts falling due within one year 16 (49,520) (56,954) (35,687) (46,440)

Net current assets 159,691 164,997 132,010 143,320 

Total assets less current liabilities 1,070,190 1,031,919 1,008,983 975,716 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than 
one year

   Housing loans 17 737,945 741,706 700,306 703,881 

   Recycled capital grant fund 18 6,002 2,707 2,686 893 

   Disposal proceeds fund 19 166 292 166 292 

   Deferred income 20 1,181 1,373 1,181 1,373 

Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 52 91 25 25 

Net pension liability 27 15,493 11,360 15,493 11,360 

Capital and reserves 

   Share capital                      22 -  -  -  -  

   Revenue reserves   23 306,671 272,133 286,446 255,635 

   Revaluation reserves 24 2,250 1,826 2,250 1,826 

   Designated and restricted reserves    25 430 431 430 431 

1,070,190 1,031,919 1,008,983 975,716

Balance Sheets

The notes on pages 26 to 63 form part of these financial statements. These financial statements were approved 
by the Board on 8 July 2013.

Signed on behalf of the Board

Andrew McIntyre
Chairman

 
Paul Rees
Board Member 

Kathryn Worth
Secretary

Southern Housing Group Limited is incorporated under the Industrial and Provident Societies Act 1965 (Registered Number 31055R)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Note 2013 2012

£000s £000s

Net cash inflow from operating activities (a) 89,466 26,152 

Interest received Group     1,857 3,976 

Interest received from Joint Venture 317 433 

Interest paid      (31,173) (29,971)

Other finance costs - (58)

Returns on investments and servicing of finance (28,999) (25,620)

Housing properties purchased (124,612) (57,018)

Capital grants received 38,893 18,600 

Other fixed assets purchased     (2,137) (2,437)

Housing and other fixed asset sale receipts 36,769 27,129 

Capital expenditure (51,087) (13,726)

Investment sale/(purchase) 209 (1,919)

Financial investment 209 (1,919)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before management of liquid 
resources and financing 

(b) 9,589 (15,113)

Financing and management of  liquid resources 

   Debt due within one year (c) 467 340 

   Debt due after one year (c) (3,796) 52,477 

(3,329) 52,817 

Increase in cash in the year (c) 6,260 37,704

The launch of one of our new 
games facilities in London
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notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Operating surplus    57,361 35,225 

Depreciation charges 16,938 15,820 

Share of Joint venture surplus (3,363) (4,024)

Impairment 4,662 1,626 

Decrease/(Increase) in stock of homes for re-sale 17,334 (33,255)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (3,115) 1,612 

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (312) 9,129 

(Decrease)/increase in provisions for liabilities and charges (39) 19 

Net cash inflow from operating activities  89,466 26,152

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Increase in cash in the year 6,260 37,704 

Cash inflow/(outflow) from: 

New loans -  (55,730)

Loan repayments 3,329 2,913 

Change in net debt resulting from cashflows 9,589 (15,113)

Change in net debt resulting from non cashflows (35) (197)

Movement in net debt in the year 9,554 (15,310)

Net debt at the start of the year (595,480) (580,170)

Net debt at the end of the year (585,926) (595,480)

At 1 April Non Cash Flow Cash flow At 31 March

2012 2013

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Cash at bank and in hand  149,726 -  6,260 155,986 

Debt due within one year:

Housing loans (3,500) -  (467) (3,967)

Debt due after more than one year:

Housing loans (741,706) (35) 3,796 (737,945)

Net debt (595,480) (35) 9,589 (585,926)

c) Analysis of net debt   

 b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt  

a) Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities
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Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements 
incorporate the financial statements 
of Southern Housing Group Limited 
(SHGL) (Parent Body), Southern Home 
Ownership Limited (SHO), Southern 
Space Limited (SSL) and Southern 
Development Services Limited (SDSL) 
and are consolidated in accordance 
with Industrial and Provident Societies 
(Group Accounts) Regulations 1969 
and the Accounting Direction for 
Social Housing in England from April 
2012. The Group has taken advantage 
of the exemption in FRS 8  - ‘Related 
Party Disclosures’ and has therefore 
not disclosed transactions of balances 
with entities which form part of the 
Group, except those required by the 
Direction in Note 31.

The Joint Venture investments in 
Triathlon Homes LLP and Affinity 
Housing Services (Reading) LLP are 
consolidated using the gross equity 
accounting method as per FRS9. SSL 
has accounted for its investment in 
Triathlon Homes LLP as an investment 
at cost as it is exempt from preparing 

1. Principal accounting policies

The financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with 
applicable Generally Accepted 
Accounting Standards, the Industrial 
and Provident Societies (Group 
Accounts) Regulations 1969, the 
Statement of Recommended Practice 
“Accounting by Registered Social 
Landlords” updated in 2010, the 
Accounting Direction for Social 
Housing in England from April 2012, 
and on the historical cost basis (as 
modified by the revaluation of certain 
investments). The accounting policies 
have been consistently applied. 

Each accounting policy adopted 
by the Board of Directors of 
the Southern Housing Group is 
presented as an introduction to the 
note to the Financial Statements to 
which the policy applies. 

consolidated accounts and under 
FRS9 it need not disclose its share 
of the assets and liabilities of the 
joint venture as it is disclosed in 
these Group Accounts. 

The Parent Body, under certain 
circumstances, has the power to 
appoint and remove the Board 
members of Southern Home 
Ownership Limited, thereby 
establishing a quasi-subsidiary 
relationship, which requires that 
their results should be 
consolidated with Southern 
Housing Group Limited. 

Going concern
The Board has a reasonable 
expectation that the Group has 
adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future, being a period 
of twelve months after the date 
on which the report and financial 
statements are signed. For this 
reason, it continues to adopt the 
going concern basis in the 
financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March

Policies:

Turnover
Turnover represents rental and service 
charge income receivable from 
properties owned by the Group and 
those managed for third parties, 
fees receivable (excluding VAT) 
when they fall due; and revenue 
grants from the public bodies are 
credited to the Income & Expenditure 
Account in the same period as the 
expenditure to which they relate. It 
also includes receipts from the sale of 
the 1st tranche of shared ownership 

properties, proceeds from the sale of 
properties developed for the open 
market which are recognised on legal 
completion, and fees receivable for 
Design and Build services.

Service charges
The Group operates both fixed and 
variable service charges on a scheme 
by scheme basis in full consultation 
with residents. The service charges 
on all schemes are set on the basis 
of budgets. Where variable service 
charges are used the budget will 
include an allowance for the surplus 

2. Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surpluses

or deficit from prior years, with a 
surplus being returned to residents 
in the form of a reduced charge 
for the year and a deficit being 
recovered via a higher service charge 
or by alternative methods if the 
contract allows. Until these surpluses 
are returned they are held on the 
balance sheet as a creditor and a 
deficit is held as a debtor.
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GROUP 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012

Turnover Cost of 
Sales

Operating 
Costs

Operating 
Surplus

Turnover Cost of 
Sales

Operating 
Costs

Operating 
Surplus

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Social housing lettings 129,154 - (95,367) 33,787 120,824 (92,943) 27,881 

Other social housing activities 

   Charges for support services 2,839 - (2,185) 654 2,095 - (2,102) (7)

   Current asset property sales 14,282 (10,158) - 4,124 3,373 (2,335) - 1,038 

   Other - - - - 296 - (182) 114 

Non-social housing activities 

   Commercial income 1,389 - - 1,389 1,370 - (2) 1,368 

   Market renting lettings 23 - (20) 3 81 - (24) 57 

   Open Market Sales 32,979 (18,653) - 14,326 7,099 (5,670) - 1,429 

   Impairment of Open Market 
   housing properties

- - (125) (125) - - (141) (141)

   Other 38 - (198) (160) - - (538) (538)

Total 180,704 (28,811) (97,895) 53,998 135,138 (8,005) (95,932) 31,201

GROUP General 
Needs

Supported 
and Older 

People’s 
Housing

Affordable 
Rent

Intermediate 
Rent

Shared 
Ownership

2013         
Total

2012         
Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges 86,224 10,739 505 7,398 10,270 115,136 106,470 

Charges for Support Services - - - - - - - 

Service charges receivable 9,079 1,178 - 460 3,228 13,945 13,106 

Gross rental income 95,303 11,917 505 7,858 13,498 129,081 119,576 

Income from properties managed for third parties 73 - - - - 73 1,248 

Turnover from social housing lettings 95,376 11,917 505 7,858 13,498 129,154 120,824 

Management  (23,933) (2,984) (256) (1,155) (4,775) (33,103) (31,452)

Service charge costs (10,880) (1,355) (116) (533) (2,949) (15,833) (15,670)

Rent losses from bad debts (573) (71) (6) (26) (98) (774) (1,230)

Routine maintenance (16,576) (2,064) (177) (1,099) - (19,916) (19,677)

Planned maintenance (3,468) (432) (37) (178) - (4,115) (8,103)

Depreciation (14,255) (1,775) (152) (756) - (16,938) (15,326)

Impairment (4,262) - - - (426) (4,688) (1,485)

Operating costs on social housing lettings (73,947) (8,681) (744) (3,747) (8,248) (95,367) (92,943)

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 21,429 3,236 (239) 4,111 5,250 33,787 27,881 

Void losses 1,918 239 95 138 - 2,390 1,975

2. Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating costs and operating surpluses / deficits

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings 

Major repairs are included in planned and cyclical maintenance.
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2. Particulars of turnover, operating costs and operating surpluses (continued)

ASSOCIATION 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012

Turnover Cost of 
Sales

Operating 
Costs

Operating 
Surplus

Turnover Cost of 
Sales

Operating 
Costs

Operating 
Surplus

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Social housing lettings 124,252 - (96,449) 27,803 116,590 - (94,127) 22,463 

Other social housing activities 

   Charges for support services 2,839 - (2,185) 654 2,095 - (2,102) (7)

   Current asset property sales 11,829 (9,407) - 2,422 3,373 (2,335) - 1,038 

   Other including gift aid 21,036 - - 21,036 8,984 - - 8,984 

Non-social housing activities 

   Commercial income 1,370 - - 1,370 1,350 - (2) 1,348 

   Other 105 - - 105 - - - -

Total 161,431 (9,407) (98,634) 53,390 132,392 (2,335) (96,231) 33,826 

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings

ASSOCIATION General 
Needs

Supported 
and Older 

People’s 
Housing

Affordable 
Rent

Intermediate 
Rent

Shared 
Ownership

2013         
Total

2012            
Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges 87,033 10,840 505 6,944 5,138 110,460 103,492 

Service charges 9,079 1,178 - 445 1,891 12,593 11,850 

Gross rental income 96,112 12,018 505 7,389 7,029 123,053 115,342 

Income from properties managed for third parties 277 - - - 922 1,199 1,248 

Turnover from social housing lettings 96,389 12,018 505 7,389 7,951 124,252 116,590 

Management  (25,604) (3,189) (273) (1,203) (5,117) (35,386) (33,814)

Service charge costs (10,880) (1,355) (116) (511) (2,174) (15,036) (15,025)

Rent losses from bad debts (573) (71) (6) (27) (114) (791) (1,114)

Routine maintenance (16,576) (2,064) (177) (779) - (19,596) (19,350)

Planned maintenance (3,468) (432) (37) (163) - (4,100) (8,102)

Depreciation (14,255) (1,775) (152) (670) - (16,852) (15,237)

Impairment (4,262) - - - (426) (4,688) (1,485)

Operating costs on social housing lettings (75,618) (8,886) (761) (3,353) (7,831) (96,449) (94,127)

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 20,771 3,132 (256) 4,036 120 27,803 22,463 

Void losses 1,918 239 95 136 - 2,388 1,962

Major repairs are included in planned and cyclical maintenance.
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ASSOCIATION General 
Needs

Supported 
and Older 

People’s 
Housing

Affordable 
Rent

Intermediate 
Rent

Shared 
Ownership

2013         
Total

2012            
Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges 87,033 10,840 505 6,944 5,138 110,460 103,492 

Service charges 9,079 1,178 - 445 1,891 12,593 11,850 

Gross rental income 96,112 12,018 505 7,389 7,029 123,053 115,342 

Income from properties managed for third parties 277 - - - 922 1,199 1,248 

Turnover from social housing lettings 96,389 12,018 505 7,389 7,951 124,252 116,590 

Management  (25,604) (3,189) (273) (1,203) (5,117) (35,386) (33,814)

Service charge costs (10,880) (1,355) (116) (511) (2,174) (15,036) (15,025)

Rent losses from bad debts (573) (71) (6) (27) (114) (791) (1,114)

Routine maintenance (16,576) (2,064) (177) (779) - (19,596) (19,350)

Planned maintenance (3,468) (432) (37) (163) - (4,100) (8,102)

Depreciation (14,255) (1,775) (152) (670) - (16,852) (15,237)

Impairment (4,262) - - - (426) (4,688) (1,485)

Operating costs on social housing lettings (75,618) (8,886) (761) (3,353) (7,831) (96,449) (94,127)

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 20,771 3,132 (256) 4,036 120 27,803 22,463 

Void losses 1,918 239 95 136 - 2,388 1,962

3. Board and senior executive emoluments

The remuneration paid to the directors (who for the purposes of this note include the members of the Board, 
the Group Chief Executive and any other person who is a member of the Group Strategy Team) was as follows:

Group 2013 2012

£000s £000s

Emoluments 684 752

Compensation for loss of office 49 - 

Pension contributions 99 97

Non Executive Emoluments 55 51

887 900

No. No.

  £0 - £10,000 15 12

  £100,000 - £110,000 1 - 

  £120,000 - £130,000 - 1

  £130,000 - £140,000 - 1

  £140,000 - £150,000 1 - 

  £150,000 - £160,000 1 1

  £170,000 - £180,000 1 1

  £250,000 - £260,000 1 1

The remuneration (excluding pension contributions but including non-consolidated bonus) payable to the 
Group Chief Executive, who is also the highest paid director, were:

Emoluments paid to directors in bands including pensions and employers NI, benefits in kind 
and non-consolidated bonus

£ £

Salary 183,571 184,340

Benefits in kind 5,324 6,974

Total remuneration 188,895 191,314

The Group Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Group pension scheme, a contributory scheme, and 
no enhanced or special terms apply. One Board member waived entitlement to remuneration.  

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Tom Dacey 189 191

Rosemary Farrar 140 137

Dale Meredith 132 131

Paul Smith 108 105

Alene Wilton 89 107

Chief Executive and Chairman’s remuneration on a £ per unit basis

2013 2012

£ / Unit £/ Unit

Chief Executive 6.57 6.77

Chairman (waived remuneration) - -

Remuneration of the Group Executive Team was:
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The Remuneration and Nominations Committee sets the pay of the Executive Directors at a level to attract and 
retain the talent required to lead the Group. In doing this it takes account of a market comparative exercise 
which is carried out annually by an independent body. Our aim is not to pay the highest salaries in the market 
but to remain competitive. During the year executive salaries increased by 3.14% for the Executive Team and by 
2.95% for the rest of staff in line with prevailing conditions in the wider market.

The pension schemes available to the Executive Directors are offered on the same terms as to other staff. 
Executive Directors participate in a bonus scheme, non-consolidated for pension purposes whereas staff below 
Executive Director receive an annual performance related pay award. The awards in both cases are determined 
by personal performance against objectives and targets.

4. Employee information

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

FTE FTE FTE FTE

Housing Management 570 546 570 546 

Office Staff 219 220 216 217 

Average number of full-time equivalent employees 789 766 786 763 

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Wages and salaries    22,665 21,785 22,325 21,450 

Social security costs        2,144 2,057 2,110 2,026 

Other pension costs   2,076 1,541 2,045 1,513 

Total remuneration 26,885 25,383 26,480 24,989

Group Group

2013 2012

FTE FTE

  £60,000  -  £70,000 9 8

  £70,000  -  £80,000 9 7

  £80,000  -  £90,000 3 3

  £90,000  -  £100,000 3 2

  £100,000 - £110,000 1 3

  £110,000 - £120,000 1 - 

  £130,000 - £140,000 2 2

  £180,000 -  £190,000 1 - 

  £190,000 -  £200,000 - 1

Remuneration paid to staff including Executives in bands from £60,000 upwards:  

Remuneration includes salary, allowances, benefits in kind and non-consolidated bonus in accordance 
with the Accounting Direction for Social Housing in England from 2012.

The 2012 figures have been restated to reflect the requirements of the 2012 Accounting Direction.  
 

Monthly average number of full-time equivalent 
employees (FTE = 35 hours per week):

Staff costs (for the above employees) 
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5. Surplus on sale of fixed assets

6. interest receivable and other income

7. interest payable and similar charges

Interest is capitalised on properties under construction using the weighted average interest rate for borrowing 
which was 4.19% per annum for the Group (2012: 4.22% per annum).

Deferred income written back relates to debenture premium, the policy for which is in Note 17.

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Sale proceeds 36,812 27,129 29,735 19,395 

Cost of sales (23,418) (16,485) (20,439) (12,657)

Incidental sale expenses (43) (222) (15) (178)

13,351 10,422 9,281 6,560 

    

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Income from investments   461 2,449 415 2,456 

Income from bank deposits  1,713 1,960 1,516 1,814 

2,174 4,409 1,931 4,270

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

On loans 31,961 31,024 31,485 30,607 

Less: interest payable capitalised (2,324) (2,141) (2,145) (1,995)

Joint venture interest payable 3,356 2,940 - - 

 32,993  31,823  29,340  28,612 

Deferred Interest and Indexation 

Index linked loan     81 133 81 133 

Deferred income written back (136) (136) (136) (136)

32,938 31,820 29,285 28,609

8. Other finance costs

Group Group

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Group pension scheme

   Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,265 1,449 

   Interest on pension scheme liabilities (1,463) (1,434)

Isle of Wight Council pension scheme

   Expected return on pension scheme assets 222 261 

   Interest on pension scheme liabilities (315) (334)

(291) (58)
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9. Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Depreciation: 

   Property 11,718 10,724 11,639 10,648 

   Other tangible fixed assets       2,467 2,333 2,459 2,326 

   Component write off 3,329 2,269 3,329 2,263 

Impairment 4,813 1,626 4,688 1,485 

Operating leases: 

   Property 248 240 248 240 

   Other equipment       179 63 179 63 

Auditor’s remuneration: 

Audit services               103 122 83 104 

Tax services - 43 - 40 

Other services - 24 - 24

10. tax on surplus on ordinary activities

Policies:
Taxation
No taxation is payable on the charitable surpluses of the Parent Body. Taxation is chargeable on the surpluses of 
SHO, SSL and SDSL. Surpluses either in whole or in part are transferred by Gift Aid. The Group is registered for Value 
Added Tax. As the majority of group activities  are exempt from VAT the recovery under partial exemption is minimal.

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of 
certain items for taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, 
except as otherwise required by FRS 19.

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

UK Corporation tax £000s £000s £000s £000s

Current tax at 24% (2012 : 26%) 904 260 - - 

Current tax reconciliation

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax 39,650 18,178 35,026 15,989 

Share of joint venture taxable surplus 1,891 4,968 - - 

less surplus from  charitable activities (35,026) (15,989) (35,026) (15,989)

Taxable surplus on ordinary activities 6,515 7,157 - - 

Current tax at 24% (2012 : 26%) 1,564 1,861 - - 

Effects of:

    Tax relief on Gift Aid paid by subsidiaries - (309) - - 

    Indexation allowances in period (81) - - - 

    Utilisation of tax losses (317) (1,292) - - 

    Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (23) - 

    Capital allowances for period in excess of    
    depreciation

21 - - - 

    Ajustment to tax charge in respect of 
    previous periods

(260) - - - 

Total current tax charge  (see above) 904 260 - -

The current tax charge for the year is lower (2012:lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (24% (2012 : 26%)). 
The differences are explained below.

Surplus on ordinary activities before tax for the year is stated after charging:
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Factors that may affect future tax charges
From 1 April 2013 the rate of UK corporation tax that was enacted at the balance sheet date was 23%. 
It is expected that the corporation tax rate will change to 21% over the following two years. There are no 
other factors that may significantly affect future tax charges.
 

For all properties impairment 
reviews are carried out on an 
annual basis to ensure the carrying 
value in the balance sheet does not 
exceed the recoverable amount.
 
Social housing grant
Where developments have been 
financed wholly or partly by 
Social Housing Grant the cost of 
those developments have been 
reduced by the grant received and 
receivable. Social Housing Grant 
released on sale of a property 
may be repayable, but is normally 
available to be recycled and is 
credited to a Recycled Capital 
Grant Fund or Disposal Proceeds 
Fund and included in the balance 
sheet in creditors. Social Housing 
Grant received in advance in 
respect of housing properties in the 
course of construction is shown as 
a current liability.

Other grants
These include grants from local 
authorities and other organisations. 
The capital costs of housing 
properties are stated net of grants 
received and receivable on these 
properties. Grants in respect of 
revenue expenditure are credited 
to the income and expenditure 
account in the same period as the 
expenditure to which they relate. 
On disposal grants are dealt with in 
accordance with the terms of the 
original agreement.

11. tangible fixed assets: 
housing properties

Policies:

Housing properties
Housing properties are held at 
cost less the amount of grants 
received towards their costs and 
depreciation. Cost includes the cost 
of acquiring land and buildings, 
development costs, interest 
capitalised during the development 
period, and directly attributable 
administration costs.

Housing properties are split 
between the structure and those 
major components which require 
periodic replacement. Replacement 
or restoration of such major 
components is capitalised and 
depreciated over the average 
estimated useful life which has 
been set taking into account 
professional advice, the Group’s 
asset management strategy and 
the requirements of the Decent 
Homes Standard.     

Works to existing properties which 
result in an increase in the net 
rental income over the lives of the 
properties, thereby enhancing the 
economic benefits of the assets, 
are capitalised as improvements. 
Examples would be work that 
results in an increase in rental 
income, a reduction in future 
maintenance costs or a significant 
extension of the useful economic 
life of the property.

Housing properties in the course 
of construction are held at cost 
and are not depreciated. They 
are transferred to completed 
properties when handed over 
for letting or sale. Capitalisation 
of development costs ceases at 
practical completion including 
the accrual of known costs at 
that time and all subsequent 
costs are expensed. It is Group 
policy to ensure resident shared 
owners meet their obligations 
of maintaining the property in a 
continuous state of sound repair 
and the Group considers that any 
depreciation calculation based on 
the property’s current value would 
be insignificant, due to the large 
residual values and long 
economic lives.  

Depreciation and impairment
Freehold land is not subject to 
depreciation.  Depreciation is 
charged on a straight-line basis 
over the useful economic lives of 
fixed assets to write off the cost 
less any attributable grant to the 
estimated residual value at the 
following useful economic lives:

Housing properties held 
for letting:

10. tax on surplus on ordinary activities (continued)

Structure 100 years

Major components
Bathroom: 30 years

Heating system gas: 15 years

Heating system electric: 25 years

Kitchen: 20 years

Roof (pitched): 60 years

Roof (flat): 20 years

Windows: 30 years

Wiring: 30 years
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11. tangible fixed assets: housing properties (continued)

Group Housing 
Properties Held 

for Letting

Housing 
Properties for 
Letting under 
construction

Shared 
Ownership 

housing 
properties

Shared 
Ownership 

housing 
properties under 

construction

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost 

At 1 April 2012 1,417,353 88,647 205,446 18,209 1,729,655 

Schemes completed 94,203 (94,203) 9,897 (9,897) - 

Additions:  New properties 12,112 64,018 16,686 9,395 102,211 

                 Existing properties 15,345 - - - 15,345 

Components written off (3,329) - - - (3,329)

Impairment (20) (1,977) (8) (513) (2,518)

Transfer from/(to) stock - 9,589 809 423 10,821 

Disposals (18,876) (2,794) (12,748) - (34,418)

At 31 March 2013 1,516,788 63,280 220,082 17,617 1,817,767 

Social Housing Grant 

At 1 April 2012 593,796 32,081 159,714 21,748 807,339 

*Reclassification 75,566 21,224 (77,554) (19,236) - 

Transfer from current liabilities - 6,693 - - 6,693 

Transfer between tenures - (2,085) - 2,085 - 

Schemes completed 53,484 (53,484) 2,034 (2,034) - 

Additions 5,167 26,489 4,834 (346) 36,144 

Transfer (to)/from recycled capital grant/disposal 
proceeds fund

(574) 1,277 (2,803) 32 (2,068)

Disposals (6,675) - - - (6,675)

At 31 March 2013 720,764 32,195 86,225 2,249 841,433 

Other Grants 

At 1 April 2012 36,095 1,596 2,071 333 40,095 

Additions 525 (152) - (28) 345 

At 31 March 2013 36,620 1,444 2,071 305 40,440 

Accumulated Depreciation 

At 1 April 2012 70,497 - - - 70,497 

Charge for year 11,718 - - - 11,718 

Eliminated in respect of disposals (1,801) - - - (1,801)

At 31 March 2013 80,414 - - - 80,414 

Net Book Value 

At 31 March 2013 678,990 29,641 131,786 15,063 855,480 

At 31 March 2012 716,965 54,970 43,661 (3,872) 811,724

*To reclassify the brought forward balances at 1 April 2012. There are fixed charges on 14,148 housing units.   
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11. tangible fixed assets: housing properties (continued)
 
Association Housing 

Properties Held 
for Letting

Housing 
Properties for 
Letting under 
construction

Shared 
Ownership 

housing 
properties

Shared 
Ownership 

housing 
properties under 

construction

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost 

At 1 April 2012 1,414,651 88,647 116,198 16,208 1,635,704 

Schemes completed 94,203 (94,203) 7,987 (7,987) - 

Additions: New properties 12,112 64,018 16,467 7,505 100,102 

                Existing properties 15,345 - - - 15,345 

Components written off (3,329) - - - (3,329)

Impairment (20) (1,977) (8) (513) (2,518)

Transfer from stock - 9,589 809 533 10,931 

Disposals (18,876) (2,794) (10,157) - (31,827)

At 31 March 2013 1,514,086 63,280 131,296 15,746 1,724,408 

Social Housing Grant 

At 1 April 2012 592,365 27,189 112,234 25,543 757,331 

*Reclassification 75,566 21,224 (77,554) (19,236) - 

Transfer from current liabilities - 6,693 - - 6,693 

Transfer between tenures - (2,085) - 2,085 - 

Schemes completed 53,484 (53,484) 2,034 (2,034) - 

Additions 5,167 26,489 4,834 (346) 36,144 

Transfer from recycled capital grant/Disposal  
Proceeds Fund

(574) 1,277 (1,387) 32 (652)

Disposals (6,675) - - - (6,675)

At 31 March 2013 719,333 27,303 40,161 6,044 792,841 

Other Grants 

At 1 April 2012 36,095 1,596 786 333 38,810 

Schemes completed - - - - - 

Additions 525 (152) - (28) 345 

At 31 March 2013 36,620 1,444 786 305 39,155 

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2011 69,966 - - - 69,966 

Charge for year 11,639 - - - 11,639 

Eliminated in respect of disposals (1,801) - - - (1,801)

At 31 March 2013 79,804 - - - 79,804 

Net Book Value 

At 31 March 2013 678,329 34,533 90,349 9,397 812,608 

At 31 March 2012 716,225 59,862 3,178 (9,668) 769,597 

     
*To reclassify the brought forward balances at 1 April 2012. There are fixed charges on 13,130 housing units.  
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11. tangible fixed assets: housing properties (continued)

Housing properties comprise:

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Freehold             1,760,648 1,672,536 1,698,741 1,610,037 

Long leasehold           57,119 57,119 25,667 25,667 

1,817,767 1,729,655 1,724,408 1,635,704 

Short term leasehold £nil (2012:£nil)

Total Social Housing Grant received or receivable 
to date is as follows: 

SHG and other capital grants deducted from:  

Housing properties at cost 881,873 847,434 831,996 796,141 

Homebuy and starter home initiative 8,714 8,998 300 300 

Add: cumulative amount credited to Income and 
Expenditure Account 

21,432 21,432 21,432 21,432 

912,019 877,864 853,728 817,873 

 
Additions to housing properties during the year included net capitalised interest paid of £2,324,000 (2012: £2,141,000). Cumulative interest 
capitalised on historic developments is not separately identifiable.    
Total expenditure on works to existing group properties during the year amounted to £40,723,000 (2012: £42,371,000) of which £16,692,000 
(2012: £14,591,000) was capitalised.

36

Our first scheme, Liverpool Road in London

Our first scheme, Liverpool 
Road in London
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Accommodation in management comprises:

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

 Units  Units  Units  Units 

Units owned and managed:

General needs 17,995 18,035 17,995 18,035 

Housing for older people 2,627 2,555 2,627 2,555 

Affordable rent 220 40 220 40 

Supported housing 249 249 249 249 

Shared ownership 3,439 3,297 1,584 1,479 

Intermediate rent 974 912 921 859 

25,504 25,088 23,596 23,217 

Units managed on behalf of other landlords:

General needs   34 34 34 34

Affordable rent 1 - 1 - 

Shared ownership 5 18 1,860 1,836 

Intermediate rent - - 53 53 

40 52 1,948 1,923 

Managed freeholds:

RTB leasehold 1,710 1,374 1,710 1,374 

100% staircased 699 699 699 699 

2,409 2,073 2,409 2,073 

Total units managed (including freeholds) 27,953 27,213 27,953 27,213 

Total units owned 27,839 27,099 25,056 24,226

    
    

Unit Numbers for 2012 have been re-stated to reflect the full range of revenue generating residential units owned or managed by the association and group.  
 

11. tangible fixed assets: housing properties (continued)
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12. Other tangible fixed assets

Policies: 

Depreciation and impairment
Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis over the useful economic lives of fixed assets to write off the cost 
less any attributable grant to the estimated residual value at the following annual rates:

Commercial shops:    30 years
Freehold offices:    between 30 and 60 years 
Plant, machinery, fixtures and vehicles:  between 3 and 5 years
Computer equipment:     3 years

Subject to those properties held on short lease where the maximum period is that of the remaining lease.

For all properties impairment reviews are carried out on an annual basis in accordance with FRS 11.

Group Freehold & 
leasehold 
properties

Estate equipment Plant, machinery, 
fixtures & vehicles

Computer, 
hardware & 

software

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost

At 1 April 2012 34,553 16,629 2,255 3,382 56,819 

Additions 9 1,802 44 282 2,137 

Disposals - (204) (135) - (339)

At 31 March 2013 34,562 18,227 2,164 3,664 58,617 

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2012 5,629 6,584 1,974 2,685 16,872 

Charge for year 613 1,166 8 680 2,467 

Disposals - (136) (132) - (268)

At 31 March 2013 6,242 7,614 1,850 3,365 19,071 

Net book value

At 31 March 2013 28,320 10,613 314 299 39,546 

At 31 March 2012 28,924 10,045 281 697 39,947



39Financial Statements

Association Freehold & 
leasehold 
properties

Estate equipment Plant, machinery, 
fixtures & vehicles

Computer, 
hardware & 

software

Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost

At 1 April 2012 34,147 16,629 2,255 3,379 56,410 

Additions 9 1,802 44 283 2,138 

Disposals - (204) (135) - (339)

At 31 March 2013 34,156 18,227 2,164 3,662 58,209 

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2012 5,604 6,584 1,974 2,685 16,847 

Charge for year 606 1,166 8 679 2,459 

Disposals - (136) (132) - (268)

At 31 March 2013 6,210 7,614 1,850 3,364 19,038 

Net book value

At 31 March 2013 27,946 10,613 314 298 39,171 

At 31 March 2012 28,543 10,045 281 694 39,563 

12. Other tangible fixed assets (continued)

Freehold and leasehold properties comprise: Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Freehold 34,513 35,054 34,107 34,648 

Long leasehold        49 49 49 49 

34,562 35,103 34,156 34,697

Helping one of our 
residents get online
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Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost

Unlisted investments     10,582 10,608 10,582 10,633 

Investment loan to wholly owned subsidiary - - 11,599 9,980 

Investment in joint ventures 1,446 1,518 25 - 

Total investments at cost 12,028 12,126 22,206 20,613 

Market value 

Unlisted investments       12,644 12,305 12,644 12,330 

Investment loan to wholly owned subsidiary - - 11,599 9,980 

Investment in joint ventures 1,446 1,518 25 - 

Total investments at market value 14,090 13,823 24,268 22,310 

Investment properties

Cost/Valuation at 1 April 2012 926 - 926 - 

Additions - 926 - 926 

Valuation adjustment - - - - 

At 31 March 2013 926 926 926 926 

Homebuy and starter home initiatives

Homebuy and starter home initiatives 9,171 9,500 300 300 

Less: Social Housing Grant (8,714) (8,998) (300) (300)

457 502 - -

13. investments

Policy:

Investments
SHGL retains a 25% stake in homes purchased through the Homebuy scheme and variable percentage stakes in 
homes purchased through the Starter Home Initiative. Investments in Homebuy and Starter Home Initiatives are 
funded through Social Housing Grant and held in the balance sheet at historic cost. Investments in subsidiaries and 
joint ventures are stated at cost. Unlisted investments are stated at market value.

Properties held for their investment potential are accounted for in accordance with SSAP19 ‘Accounting for 
Investment Properties’. These properties are stated at value on purchase in 2012. 
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Association

£000s

At 1 April 9,980 

Net advances 1,619 

At 31 March 11,599 

Note:

Unlisted investments represent 
holdings in managed funds and 
SHGL’s investment in Affinity 
(Reading) Holdings Ltd.   
  
The year-end valuations of 
investments managed by external 
funds managers are made 
as follows:    
 
• COIF Charities Investment Fund  
 - the mid-market value of one  
 unit in the relevant funds is   
 advised by the fund managers 
   
• Black Rock Charitrak Fund - the  
 unit value for valuation purposes  
 was advised by the fund   
 managers. 
   
Other investments are held at cost 
less, where appropriate, a written 
down provision.   
   

Southern Housing Group 
Limited holds:  
  
• 100% of the ordinary share 
 capital of Southern    
 Development Services Limited. 
 
• 100% of the ordinary share 
 capital of Southern 
 Space Limited.
 
• 50% partnership capital in in 
 Affinity Housing Services   
 (Reading), a joint venture   
 with Windsor District   
 Housing Association. The   
 joint venture has a 33% holding  
 in Affinity (Reading) Holdings  
 Limited, which holds 100%  
 of the share capital holds 100%  
 of the share capital of Affinity  
 (Reading) limited, the operator  
 of a PFI Contract to supply   
 refurbishment, management  
 and maintenance services 
  to part of Reading Borough  
 Council’s Stock.

• Southern Housing Group   
 also  has a 33.33%    
 direct holding in Affinity   
 (Reading) Holdings Limited,   
 which with the 16.67%   
 indirect holding described   
 above, gives a total interest of  
 50%. This is accounted for as  
 as an investment at cost and  
 not as an associate or subsidiary 
    as Southern Housing Group     
    does not have significant     
 influence over the activities of  
 the entity as this is governed by  
 the PFI contract.   
   
Southern Space Limited holds 
a one-third interest in Triathlon 
Homes LLP, a joint venture with 
First Base 4 Stratford LLP and 
East Place Limited. The principal 
activity of Triathlon Homes LLP is 
the construction and supply of the 
social housing within the Athlete’s 
Village for the London Olympics 
2012. After the occupation by 
the athletes during the games 
the Triathlon share of the village 
is being retrofitted under the 
terms of the original contract for 
development and will be used for 
social housing in Stratford once 
these works are completed.  
  

investment loan to wholly owned subsidiary

Group Association

£000s £000s

At 1 April 12,305 12,305 

Investment repayment (26) (26)

12,279 12,279 

Change in value 424 424 

Write downs (59) (59)

At 31 March 12,644 12,644

Unlisted investments at market value

13. investments (continued)
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2013 2012

£000s £000s

Share of turnover of joint ventures 5,553 5,032 

Share of operating surplus in joint ventures 3,363 4,024 

Share of assets

   Share of fixed assets 78,912 76,617 

   Share of current assets 10,046 9,728 

88,958 86,345 

Share of liabilities

   Due within one year (2,848) (163)

   Due after one year (84,664) (84,664)

(87,512) (84,827)

Investment summary

   Investment at cost 525 500 

   Interest payable due to the Group - 222 

   Share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) 921 796 

1,446 1,518 

The amounts included in respect of joint ventures comprise the following:

Included above is the following individually significant joint venture.

Triathlon Homes LLP Triathlon Homes LLP

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Turnover 5,245 5,032 

Profit before interest and taxation 3,277 4,024 

Interest payable (3,356) (3,214)

Taxation - - 

Profit after taxation (79) 810

13. investments (continued)
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14. Properties for sale

Policies:

Shared Ownership first tranche sales
Shared Ownership properties held for sale and under construction are split proportionally between current 
assets and fixed assets, based on the expected first tranche proportion. First tranche proportions are accounted 
for as current assets and the related sales proceeds shown in turnover. The remaining elements of the Shared 
Ownership properties are accounted for as fixed assets. Subsequent sales are treated as part disposals of 
fixed assets.

Stock and work in progress
Stock and work in progress represents properties held for transfer to other Registered Providers or for outright 
sale, and is stated at the lower of cost (including attributable overheads and interest) and net realisable value. 

Note:

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Properties under construction 18,967 28,259 10,016 6,448 

Completed properties 6,782 3,334 3,606 3,334 

Land 4,203 18,395 4,203 18,395 

29,952 49,988 17,825 28,177

15. Debtors

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Due within one year: 

Arrears of rent and service charges  7,179 6,406 6,878 6,125 

Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts  (5,546) (4,768) (5,377) (4,582)

1,633 1,638 1,501 1,543 

Social Housing Grant receivable - 2,079 - 2,079 

Amounts due from connected entities  - - 16,961 7,061 

Other debtors       12,988 16,172 6,394 8,264 

Prepayments and accrued income     8,652 2,348 3,652 2,169 

23,273 22,237 28,508 21,116

At 31 March 2013, balances on bank accounts held on trust for shared owners totalled £6,191,000 
(2012: £5,540,000) and are included in other debtors.
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16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Social Housing Grant received in advance  139 139 - - 

Disposal proceeds fund 53 829 53 829 

Accruals and deferred income       30,427 32,029 23,246 28,250 

Deferred tax liability 1,164 260 - - 

Other taxation and social security     700 561 699 561 

Other creditors          13,070 12,943 7,747 6,607 

Capital grant on properties for sale - 6,693 - 6,693 

Housing loans            3,967 3,500 3,942 3,500 

49,520 56,954 35,687 46,440

Amounts collected from shared ownership leaseholders in respect of service charges, not yet expended, of £6,393,000 (2012: £5,580,000) are 
reflected above in other creditors.  

2013 2012

£20m 3 yearly cancellable swap at a fixed rate of 4.77%, first option date July 2010 (9.74) (7.35)

£25m 30 year cancellable swap at a fixed rate of 4.57%, option date November 2023 (8.51) (8.00)

£30m 27 year swap at a fixed rate of 4.9875% discounted by compound RPI above 3.20% (13.42) (10.57)

£75m 3 year fixed (6.35%) to floating (3.125% + 6-month LIBOR (in arrears)) swap - 1.52 

£25m 5 year swap at a fixed rate of 2.75% (2.14) (1.54)

£25m 5 year swap at a fixed rate of 3.055% (2.64) (1.70)

£25m 5 year swap at a fixed rate of 3.3% - commencing 24 June 2013 (2.98) (1.79)

Our outdoor gym at 
Stamford Hill, London
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17. Housing loans

Policy:

Premium on debentures
Premiums on issue are treated as deferred income and written back to the income and expenditure account 
over the period of the loan. Adjustments to debenture deferred income are reflected in Note 7.

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Housing loans falling due after one year 740,631 744,427 702,831 706,602 

Loan set up cost (2,686) (2,721) (2,525) (2,721)

737,945 741,706 700,306 703,881

Housing loans are all secured by specific charges on 14,148 of the Group’s housing units and are repayable in instalments due as follows:   
 

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

In one year or less   3,967 3,500 3,942 3,500 

Between one and two years    4,741 3,874 4,691 3,849 

Between two and five years       31,195 19,834 29,990 19,089 

In five years or more 704,695 720,719 668,150 683,664 

744,598 747,927 706,773 710,102

Housing loans bear hedged fixed rates of interest ranging from 3.3% to 13.1% or variable rates based on a margin above the London Inter Bank Offer 
Rate.  The final instalments fall to be repaid in the period 2017 to 2045. Southern Housing Group Limited has the following stand alone derivative 
transactions as at 31 March 2013:    

2013 2012

£20m 3 yearly cancellable swap at a fixed rate of 4.77%, first option date July 2010 (9.74) (7.35)

£25m 30 year cancellable swap at a fixed rate of 4.57%, option date November 2023 (8.51) (8.00)

£30m 27 year swap at a fixed rate of 4.9875% discounted by compound RPI above 3.20% (13.42) (10.57)

£75m 3 year fixed (6.35%) to floating (3.125% + 6-month LIBOR (in arrears)) swap - 1.52 

£25m 5 year swap at a fixed rate of 2.75% (2.14) (1.54)

£25m 5 year swap at a fixed rate of 3.055% (2.64) (1.70)

£25m 5 year swap at a fixed rate of 3.3% - commencing 24 June 2013 (2.98) (1.79)

Market value represents (liability)/asset.    
All stand-alone derivative transactions are supported by charged property security to cover any adverse mark-to-market valuations.  
  

Market Value (£million)
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18. Recycled capital grant fund

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2,707 934 893 587 

Grant released on sales 3,447 2,464 1,735 844 

Interest added to fund 24 9 9 4 

Inter-group transfer - - 225 158 

Grant recycled into new schemes (176) (700) (176) (700)

Balance as at 31 March 6,002 2,707 2,686 893 

Due within one year - - - - 

Due in more than one year 6,002 2,707 2,686 893 

Balance relating to the HCA 2,332 523 1,851 359

Balance ralating to the GLA 3,670 2,184 835 534

The balance on this fund represents grant from the Government that has been released on sales of property. Since 1 April 1997 such grants are 
available for recycling into new housing provision, over a three-year period. No funds are due for repayment.    

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 1,121 961 1,121 961 

Released on sales - 155 - 155 

Interest added to Fund 5 5 5 5 

Recycled into new schemes (907) - (907) - 

Balance as at 31 March 219 1,121 219 1,121 

Due within one year (53) (829) (53) (829)

Due in more than one year 166 292 166 292 

Balance relating to the HCA 120 284 120 284 

Balance relating to the GLA 99 837 99 837

The balance on this fund represents excess of sales on disposals of property where grant from the Government existed, which has been released on 
sales of property. The fund is available for recycling into new housing provision. No funds are due for repayment.    

19. Disposal proceeds fund
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20. Deferred income

21. Provisions for liabilities

22. Called-up share capital

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 1,373 1,518 1,373 1,518 

Transferred to Income and Expenditure Account (192) (145) (192) (145)

Balance as at 31 March 1,181 1,373 1,181 1,373 

Deferred income comprises:

Premium on debentures 985 1,122 985 1,122 

Property leasing income 196 251 196 251 

1,181 1,373 1,181 1,373

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 91 72 25 25 

Transferred to income and expenditure  account (39) 19 - - 

Balance as at 31 March 52 91 25 25

The closing balance reflects a HAMA provision of £25,000 carried forward, and a defects provision in respect of new sales properties in SSL of 
£27,000. The movement in the year represents unused defects provision in respect of new sales properties in SSL which is no longer required. 
   

Association Association

2013 2012

Shares of £1 each issued and fully paid: £ £

Balance at 1 April 8 7 

Shares issued during year - 1 

As at 31 March 8 8

The share capital of the Association consists of shares of £1 each which carry no rights to dividends or other income.  Shares in issue are 
not capable of being repaid or transferred.  When a shareholder ceases to be a member, that person’s share is cancelled.
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23. Revenue reserve

Group Association

2013 2013

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2012 272,133 255,635 

Surplus for year    38,753 35,026 

Actuarial loss relating to pension scheme (4,215) (4,215)

As at 31 March 2013 306,671 286,446 

Revenue reserve excluding pension liability 322,164 301,939 

Pension liability (15,493) (15,493)

Revenue reserve including pension liability 306,671 286,446

24. Revaluation reserve

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April      1,826 2,288 

Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of investments 424 (462)

As at 31 March    2,250 1,826 

The reserve relates to the SHGL investment portfolio shown at market value. The credit/(debit) to the reserve represents the movement in market value 
during the course of the year. 

Group and Association

Our gardening project at 
Quarr Abbey, Isle of Wight
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25. Designated and restricted reserves

Policies:

Designated reserves
These reserves are designated for specific purposes. The reserves are administered and managed in accordance 
with the purpose for which the reserve was intended.

Restricted reserves
These reserves relate to grants from third parties which are only expendable in respect of the projects for which 
they are received.

Note:

Designated reserves Restricted reserves Total Total

2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 430 1 431 431 

Expenditure in year - (1) (1) - 

As at 31 March 430 - 430 431 

                           

Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Legacy grants 133 133 133 133 

Tenant amenities 50 50 50 50 

IOW health authority housing improvements 38 38 38 38 

Sheltered housing improvements 209 209 209 209 

430 430 430 430

26. Capital commitments

Group Group Association Association

   2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided 
for in the financial statements  

28,250 98,124 22,593 93,612 

Capital expenditure authorised but 
not contracted 

44,602 14,252 33,779 14,252

Funding for these commitments can be met from existing resources.

Group and Association

Designated reserves comprise: 
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27. Pension schemes

Policy:

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of 
pension schemes:

• Defined benefit schemes – 
   Southern Housing Group Pension 
   scheme and Isle of Wight    
   Pension scheme

• Multi-employer scheme – 
   The Social Housing Pension 
   Scheme (SHPS)

• Money Purchase scheme –    
   The Zurich Assurance Limited  
   Pension Scheme

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates a pension 
scheme providing benefits based 
on final pensionable pay. The 
assets of the scheme are held 
separately from those of the 
Group. The Group also participates 
in a defined benefit pension 
scheme which is administered by 
the Isle of Wight Council and has 
minor participation with Islington 
local government pension scheme.

Pension scheme assets are 
measured using market values. 
Pension scheme liabilities are 
measured using a projected 
unit method and discounted at 
the current rate of return on a 
high quality corporate bond of 
equivalent term and currency to 
the liability.

The pension scheme surplus (to 
the extent that it is recoverable) 
or deficit is recognised in full. The 
movement in the scheme surplus/
deficit is split between operating 
charges, finance items and, in the 
statement of total recognised 
gains and losses, actuarial gains 
and losses.

The Social Housing Pensions 
Scheme (SHPS)
The Group also participates in a 
pension scheme providing benefits 
based on final pensionable pay. 
The Group is unable to identify its 
share of the underlying assets of 
the scheme on a consistent and 
reasonable basis and therefore, 
as required by FRS 17 ‘Retirement 
Benefits’, accounts for the scheme 
as if it were a defined contribution 
scheme. As a result, the amount 
charged to the income and 
expenditure account represents 
the contributions payable to 
the scheme in respect of the 
accounting period.

Money purchase scheme
The Group also participates in 
a defined contribution scheme 
where the amount charged to the 
income and expenditure account 
represents the contributions 
payable to the scheme by the 
Group in respect of the 
accounting period.

Note:
Members of the Group participate 
in a number of pension schemes:

a) Defined benefit schemes
SHGL and SHO contribute to the 
Southern Housing Group scheme 
which was closed to new members 
from 31 March 2003. SHO has only 
one member of the SHG scheme 
which is accounted for through the 
parent company accounts.

SHGL also contributes to:

• The Social Housing Pension    
   Scheme which was closed to new   
   members from 1 January 2007.

• The Isle of Wight Council 
   Pension Fund for employees who 
   transferred from the Isle of 
   Wight Council.

• The Islington local government 
   Pension Scheme of which there 
   are only 2 members, the share 
   of scheme assets and liabilities of 
   which are not material to the 
   SHGL financial statements.

b) Defined contribution schemes
A defined contribution scheme 
run by Zurich Assurance Limited 
based on an incentive matched 
scale, where the employer 
contribution increases the more 
the employee contributes.

Mortality assumption  Male  Female 

Current pensioner aged 65  21.82 yrs  24.27 yrs 

Future retiree upon reaching 65  24.81 yrs  27.20 yrs

Supported housing 
residents, Isle of Wight
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Group Group Association Association

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Southern Housing Group Pension scheme (12,520) (8,557) (12,520) (8,557)

Isle of Wight Pension scheme (2,973) (2,803) (2,973) (2,803)

Total net deficit (15,493) (11,360) (15,493) (11,360)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: 

The major assumptions used in this valuation were:

GROUP PENSION SCHEME

Actuarial assumptions 2013 2012 2011

% pa % pa % pa

Rate of increase in salaries  4.40  4.30  4.50 

Rate of increase in pensions in payments and 
deferred pensions 

 3.20  3.10  3.25 

Discount rate  4.10  4.60  5.40 

Inflation assumption - RPI  3.40  3.30  3.50 

Inflation assumption - CPI  2.60  2.50  3.00

Mortality assumption  Male  Female 

Current pensioner aged 65  21.82 yrs  24.27 yrs 

Future retiree upon reaching 65  24.81 yrs  27.20 yrs

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial 
assumptions which, due to the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

Southern Housing Group Pension Scheme 

The defined benefit plan provides benefits based on final pensionable salary. The latest full actuarial valuation 
was carried out at 31 March 2010 and was updated for FRS 17 purposes to 31 March 2013 by a professionally 
qualified independent actuary, the rates of contribution being determined by the actuary. The next full actuarial 
valuation will be March 2013 with the draft result of this expected to be available in September 2013.

During the accounting period the Group paid contributions at a rate of 23.6% plus an additional annual 
payment of £564,840 (2011/12: £597,990) towards an identified deficit.

It has been agreed that the employer contribution rate to be applied from 1 April 2013 is 23.6%.

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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2013 2012 2011

£000s £000s £000s

Equities 14,133 11,537 10,896 

Bonds 6,061 5,997 5,221 

Property 1,204 1,026 949 

Absolute return fund 5,261 4,310 4,121 

Cash 286 183 388 

Total market value of assets 26,945 23,053 21,575 

Present value of scheme liabilities (39,465) (31,610) (26,407)

Deficit in the scheme (12,520) (8,557) (4,832)

Scheme assets
The fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be 
subject to significant change before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, which 
are derived from cash flow projections over long periods and thus inherently uncertain were:

2013 2012

£000s £000s

At 1 April 2012 31,610 26,407 

Current service cost 894 736 

Interest on obligation 1,463 1,434 

Contribution by members 123 125 

Actuarial losses 6,036 3,506 

Administration expenses (510) (115)

Benefits paid (151) (483)

At 31 March 2013 39,465 31,610

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

Scheme values

2013 2012 2011

% % %

Equities 5.60 5.90 7.30

Bonds 4.00 5.00 5.30

Absolute return fund 4.80 5.00 6.80

Property 4.50 5.10 6.80

Cash 1.20 1.50 3.50

Long term rate of return

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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2013 2012 2011

£000s £000s £000s

Deficit in scheme at beginning of year (8,557) (4,832) (7,582)

Current service cost (894) (736) (742)

Contributions paid 1,138 1,158 1,000 

Other finance expense (198) 15 (354)

Actuarial (loss)/gain (4,009) (4,162) 2,846 

Deficit in scheme at end of year (12,520) (8,557) (4,832)

2013 2012 2011

£000s £000s £000s

Current service cost (894) (736) (742)

2013 2012 2011

£000s £000s £000s

Actual return less expected return on assets 2,027 (656) 498 

Experience gains arising on scheme liabilities (1,439) 416 1,628 

Changes in assumptions underlying the present 
value of scheme liabilities (4,597) (3,922) 720 

Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in statement of 
total recognised supluses and deficits (4,009) (4,162) 2,846

2013 2012

£000s £000s

At 1 April 2012 23,053 21,575 

Expected returns on fund assets 1,265 1,449 

Contribution by members 123 125 

Actuarial gains/(losses) 2,027 (656)

Contributions by employer 1,138 1,158 

Administration expenses (151) (115)

Benefits paid (510) (483)

At 31 March 2013 26,945 23,053

Movement in fair value of fund assets

Movement in deficit during year

Analysis of other pension costs charged in arriving at operating surplus

Analysis of amount recognised in statement of total recognised surpluses and deficits

2013 2012 2011

£000s £000s £000s

Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,265 1,449 1,155 

Interest on plan liabilities (1,463) (1,434) (1,509)

(198) 15 (354)

Analysis of amounts included in other finance income/expense

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fair value of scheme assets 26,945 23,053 21,575 19,260 14,272 

Present value of scheme liabilities (39,465) (31,610) (26,407) (26,842) (21,113)

Deficit (12,520) (8,557) (4,832) (7,582) (6,841)

The Social Housing 
Pension Scheme 

The Group also participates in the 
Social Housing Pension Scheme 
(SHPS). The scheme is funded 
and is contracted out of the State 
Pension Scheme.

SHPS is a multi-employer defined 
benefit scheme.  Employer 
participation in the Scheme is 
subject to adherence with the 
employer responsibilities and 
obligations as set out in the “SHPS 
House Policies and Rules Employer 
Guide”. The Scheme operated 
a single benefit structure, final 
salary with a 1/60th accrual rate, 
to March 2007, which, as both 
schemes are now closed to new 
entrants, continues to apply to 
current members. 

The Trustee commissions an 
actuarial valuation of the Scheme 
every three years. The main 
purpose of the valuation is to 
determine the financial position of 
the Scheme in order to determine 

the level of future contributions 
required, in respect of each benefit 
structure, so that the Scheme can 
meet its pension obligations as 
they fall due. From April 2007 the 
split of the total contribution rate 
between member and employer 
is set at individual employer 
level, subject to the employer 
paying no less than 50% of the 
total contribution rate. From 1 
April 2010 the requirement for 
employers to pay at least 50% 
of the total contribution rate no 
longer applies.

The actuarial valuation assesses 
whether the Scheme’s assets at 
the valuation date are likely to 
be sufficient to pay the pension 
benefits accrued by members as 
at the valuation date. Asset values 
are calculated by reference to 
market levels.  Accrued pension 
benefits are valued by discounting 
expected future benefit payments 
using a discount rate calculated by 
reference to the expected future 
investment returns.

During the accounting period the 
Group paid contributions at the 
rate of 17.8% (2012:17.1%). 
Member contributions varied 
between 10.7% and 11.7%.

At the balance sheet date, there 
were 43 (2012:46) active members 
employed in the group. The annual 
pensionable payroll in respect of 
these members was £936,944 
(2012:£1,003,749). There are no 
additional contributions payable to 
fund the deficit.

It is not possible in the normal 
course of events to identify on a 
consistent and reasonable basis 
the share of underlying assets and 
liabilities belonging to individual 
participating employers.  This is 
because the scheme is a multi-
employer scheme where the assets 
are co-mingled for investment 
purposes and benefits are paid 
out of total scheme assets.  
Accordingly, due to the nature 
of the Scheme, the accounting 
charge for the period under 
FRS17 represents the employer 
contribution payable.

History of scheme

History of experience gains and losses

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities as a 
percentage of scheme liabilities (5.34%) 1.80% 7.55% 5.32% 0.04% 

Experience adjustments on scheme assets as a 
percentage of scheme assets 7.52% (2.85%) 2.31% 20.18% (31.41%)

27. Pension schemes (continued)

The history of the scheme for the current and prior periods is as follows:
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The last formal valuation of the Scheme was performed as at 30 September 2011 by a professionally qualified actuary 
using the Projected Unit Method. The market value of the Scheme’s assets at the valuation date was £2,062 million. 
The valuation revealed a shortfall of assets compared with the value of liabilities of £1,035 million, equivalent to a past 
service funding level of 67.0%.

The Scheme Actuary has prepared an Actuarial Report that provides an approximate update on the funding position 
of the Scheme as at 30 September 2012. Such a report is required by legislation for years in which a full actuarial 
valuation is not carried out. The market value of the Scheme’s assets at the date of the Actuarial Report was £2,327 
million. The Actuarial Report revealed a shortfall of assets compared with the value of liabilities of £1,241 million, 
equivalent to a past service funding level of 65%.

Expenses for death in service insurance, administration and Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy are included in 
the contribution rate.

The valuation was carried out using the following demographic assumptions:

• Mortality pre retirement – 41% SAPS S1 Male / Female All Pensioners (amounts), Year of Birth, CMI_2009 
   projections with long term improvement rates of 1.5% pa for males and 1.25% pa for females.

• Mortality post retirement –  97% SAPS S1 Male / Female Al Pensioners (amounts), Year of Birth, CMI_2009 
   projections with long term improvement rates of 1.5% pa for males and 1.25% pa for females.

Valuation Discount Rates

Pre retirement 7.0% pa

Non pensioner post retirement 4.2% pa

Pensioner post retirement 4.2% pa

Pensionable earnings growth 2.5% pa for 3 years then 4.4%

Price inflation 2.9% pa

Pension Increases

Pre 88 GMP 0.0% pa

Post 88 GMP 2.0% pa

Excess over GMP 2.4% pa

 

The financial assumptions underlying the valuation as at 30 September 2011 were as follows:

One of our residents’ 
open days

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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The long-term joint contribution rates required from April 2013 from employers and members to meet the cost 
of future benefit accrual were assessed at:

Benefit structure Long-term joint contribution rate 

(% of pensionable salaries)

Final salary with a 1/60th accrual rate 19.4

Final salary with a 1/70th accrual rate 16.9

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/60th accrual rate 18.1

Final salary with a 1/80th accrual rate 14.8

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/80th accrual rate 14.0

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/120th accrual rate 9.7

From 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2020 A cash amount(*) equivalent to 7.5% of Members’ Earnings per annum (payable monthly and 
increasing by 4.7% per annum each April)

From 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2023 A cash amount(*) equivalent to 3.1% of Members’ Earnings per annum (payable monthly and 
increasing by 4.7% per annum each April)

From 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2026 £30,640,000 per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3% per annum each April; first increase 
April 2014)

(*) The contributions of 7.5% will be expressed in nominal pound terms (for each Employer), increasing each 
year in line with the Earnings growth assumption used in the 30 September 2008 valuation (i.e. 4.7% per 
annum). The contributions of 3.1% will be calculated by proportioning the nominal pound payment at the 
time of the change. Earnings at 30 September 2008 (for each Employer) will be used as the reference point for 
calculating these contributions.

These deficit contributions are in addition to the long-term joint contribution rates as set out in the table above.

If an actuarial valuation reveals a shortfall of assets compared to liabilities the Trustee must prepare a recovery 
plan setting out the steps to be taken to make up the shortfall.

Following consideration of the results of the actuarial valuation it was agreed that the shortfall of £1,035 million 
would be dealt with by the payment of deficit contributions as shown in the table below:

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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27. Pension schemes (continued)

The Scheme Actuary will provide 
an approximate update on the 
funding position of the Scheme 
as at 30 September 2013. Such 
a report is required by legislation 
for years in which a full actuarial 
valuation is not carried out. The 
results of this approximate update 
will be available in Spring 2014 
and will be included in next year’s 
Disclosure Note.

Employers that participate in the 
Scheme on a non-contributory 
basis pay a joint contribution rate 
(i.e. a combined employer and 
employee rate).

Employers that have closed the 
defined benefit section of the 
Scheme to new entrants are 
required to pay an additional 
employer contribution loading of 
2.5% to reflect the higher costs of 
a closed arrangement.

A small number of employers are 
required to contribute at a different 
rate to reflect the amortisation of 
a surplus or deficit on the transfer 
of assets and past service liabilities 
from another pension scheme into 
the SHPS Scheme.

New employers that do not 
transfer any past service liabilities 
to  the Scheme pay contributions 
at the ongoing future service 
contribution rate. This rate is 
reviewed at each valuation and 
new employers joining the Scheme 
between valuations up until 1 April 
2010 do not contribute towards 

the deficit until two valuations 
have been completed after their 
date of joining. New employers 
joining the Scheme after 1 April 
2010 will be liable for past 
service deficit contributions from 
the valuation following joining. 
Contribution rates are changed on 
the 1 April that falls 18 months 
after the valuation date.

A copy of the Recovery Plan, 
setting out the level of deficit 
contributions payable and the 
period for which they will be 
payable, must be sent to the 
Pensions Regulator. The Regulator 
has the power under Part 3 of 
the Pensions Act 2004 to issue 
scheme funding directions where it 
believes that the actuarial valuation 
assumptions and / or Recovery Plan 
are inappropriate. For example the 
Regulator could require that the 
Trustee strengthens the actuarial 
assumptions (which would increase 
the scheme liabilities and hence 
impact on the Recovery Plan) or 
impose a schedule of contributions 
on the Scheme (which would 
effectively amend the terms of 
the Recovery Plan).  Response 
regarding the 30 September 2011 
valuation is awaited.

As a result of pension scheme 
legislation there is a potential 
debt on the employer that could 
be levied by the Trustee of the 
Scheme. The debt is due in the 
event of the employer ceasing to 
participate in the Scheme or the 
Scheme winding up.

The debt for the Scheme as a 
whole is calculated by comparing 
the liabilities for the Scheme 
(calculated on a buyout basis i.e. 
the cost of securing benefits by 
purchasing annuity policies from 
an insurer, plus an allowance for 
expenses) with the assets of the 
Scheme.  If the liabilities exceed 
assets there is a buy-out debt.

The leaving employer’s share of the 
buy-out debt is the proportion of 
the Scheme’s liability attributable 
to employment with the leaving 
employer compared to the total 
amount of the Scheme’s liabilities 
(relating to employment with 
all the currently participating 
employers). The leaving employer’s 
debt therefore includes a share of 
any ‘orphan’ liabilities in respect of 
previously participating employers. 
The amount of the debt therefore 
depends on many factors including 
total Scheme liabilities, Scheme 
investment performance, the 
liabilities in respect of current and 
former employees of the employer, 
financial conditions at the time 
of the cessation event and the 
insurance buy-out market.  The 
amounts of debt can therefore be 
volatile over time. 

The Scheme Actuary has 
estimated the employer debt that 
would have been payable if the 
Group had withdrawn from the 
Scheme as at 30 September 2012 
to be £23,102,440.
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The Isle of Wight Council Pension Scheme

The Group participates in a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay: The Isle of 
Wight Pension scheme. The scheme is funded by the payment of contributions to a pension fund, which is 
administered by the Isle of Wight Council. 

The latest full actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 March 2012 by a qualified independent actuary.
It has been agreed that an employer contribution rate of 20.8% of pensionable pay will apply for 2013/14 
(2012/13: 20.8%). The major assumptions used in this valuation were:

2013 2012 2011

% pa % pa % pa

Rate of increase in salaries 5.10 4.80 5.10

Rate of increase in pensions in payments and 
deferred pensions 

2.80 2.50 2.80

Discount rate 4.50 4.80 5.50

Inflation assumption - RPI 3.20 3.10 3.60

Inflation assumption - CPI 2.40 2.30 3.10

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based 
on standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity.  The 
assumptions are equivalent to expecting a 65-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

• Current pensioner aged 65: 22.9 years (male), 25.7 years (female).
• Future retiree upon reaching 65: 24.9 years (male), 27.7 years (female).

Actuarial assumptions

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial 
assumptions which, due to the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

Scheme assets
The fair value of our share of the scheme’s assets, which are not intended to be realised in the short term and 
may be subject to significant change before they are realised, and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, 
which are derived from the cash flow projections over long periods and thus inherently uncertain, were:

2013 2012 2011

£000s £000s £000s

Equities 3,235 2,725 2,791 

Bonds 931 896 814 

Property 222 234 194 

Other 44 39 78 

Total market value of our share of assets 4,432 3,894 3,877 

Present value of our share of scheme liabilities (7,405) (6,697) (6,179)

Deficit in the scheme (2,973) (2,803) (2,302)

2013 2012 2011

% % %

Equities 5.80 6.30 7.50

Bonds 4.10 4.60 4.90

Property 3.90 4.40 5.50

Cash 3.00 3.50 4.60

Long term rate of return

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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The market value of the scheme’s assets (whole Fund) at 31 March 2013 was £391.4 million.

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Opening defined benefit obligation 6,697 6,179 

Current service cost 37 40 

Interest cost 315 334 

Contribution by members 11 11 

Actuarial losses 654 382 

Past service costs - - 

Losses on curtailments - - 

Estimated benefits paid (309) (249)

Deficit in scheme at end of year 7,405 6,697

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Opening fair value of employer assets 3,894 3,877 

Expected return on assets 222 261 

Contributions by members 11 11 

Contributions by employer 167 167 

Actuarial gains/(losses) 447 (173)

Benefits paid (309) (249)

Total charged to operating cost 4,432 3,894

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Current service cost 37 40 

Interest cost 315 334 

Expected return on employer assets (222) (261)

Past service costs - - 

Losses on curtailments and settlements - - 

Total 130 113 

Expense recognised in income and Expenditure Account

Recognition of defined benefit obligation

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the Income and Expenditure Account:

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Operating costs 37 40 

Other finance costs 93 73 

Total 130 113

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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The total amount recognised in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses in respect of actuarial 
gains and losses is £207,000 loss (2012: £555,000 loss).     
          

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fair value of scheme assets 4,432 3,894 3,877 3,592 2,664 

Present value of funded liabilities (7,405) (6,697) (6,179) (7,303) (4,879)

Deficit (2,973) (2,803) (2,302) (3,711) (2,215)

History of scheme

The history of the scheme for the current and prior periods is as follows:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

%  %  %  %  %  

Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities as a 
percentage of scheme liabilities 0.22 (1.82) 2.09 - - 

Experience adjustments on scheme assets as a 
percentage of scheme assets 10.09 (4.44) 3.10 23.33 (32.88)

Experience adjustments

28. Operating Leases

Policy:

Leased assets

Payments under cancellable operating leases are charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight 
line basis over the life of the lease.

Leasing rentals in respect of property amounting to £248,000 (2012: £240,000) and equipment £179,000 
(2012: £63,000) were charged during the year.

At 31 March 2013 the Group had the following annual commitments in respect of operating leases:

Property Equipment Total Total

2013 2013 2013 2012

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Operating leases which expire:

   Within one year - - - 2 

   Within two to five years 112 179 291 206 

   Within five to ten years 143 - 143 128 

255 179 434 336

The Association expects to contribute approximately £165,000 to its defined benefit scheme in the next 
financial year.

The Zurich Assurance Limited Pension Scheme  
    
The Group also participates in a defined contribution scheme run by Zurich Assurance Limited based on an 
incentive matched scale, where the employer contribution increases the more the employee contributes.  
         

27. Pension schemes (continued)
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29. Legislative provisions

Southern Housing Group Limited is incorporated under the Industrial and Provident Societies Act 1965 
(Registered Number 31055R) and registered with the Homes and Communities Agency and previously with the 
Housing Corporation under the Housing Act 1974 (Registered Number L4628).

30. Group organisations

Southern Housing Group Limited is the parent body and is required to prepare group accounts for the 
following organisations included in these financial statements :

Southern Housing Group Limited  Registered Provider Number: L4628 

Southern Home Ownership Limited  Registered Provider Number: LH1662

Southern Space Limited   Incorporated under CA06 Companies Act number 5437850

Southern Development    Incorporated under CA06 Companies Act number 5400187
Services Limited    

Affinity Housing Services    Joint venture partnership with Windsor & District HA
(Reading) LLP     

Triathlon Homes LLP    Joint venture partnership with First Base 4 Stratford LLP and 
      East Place Limited

Under Financial Reporting Standard 9 Southern Space Limited is exempt from the requirement to use gross 
equity accounting for the joint venture investment. 

Caledonian Park at our 
Parkside Place scheme
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31. Related parties

Received by Southern Housing Group from non-regulated group members on a commercial 
arms length basis:

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Total receipts 3,839 3,978

 

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Total payments 651 642

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Total payments 2,237 2,150

Payments made by Southern Housing Group to non-regulated group members on a commercial 
arms length basis:

Payments made by Southern Home Ownership to non-regulated group members on a 
commercial arms length basis:

SDSL – Recharge of administrative support costs and gift aid donations
SSL – Interest on loan, and recharge of administrative support costs and development team costs, and gift 
aid donations
Affinity Housing Services (Reading) LLP – Director’s services

SDSL – Design and build fees relating to construction services

SDSL – Design and build fees relating to construction services
SSL – Commission relating to housing sales

Receipts comprised:

Payments comprised:

Payments comprised:
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32. Samuel Lewis Foundation

The Samuel Lewis Foundation is a separate charity with SHGL as its trustee.  Permanent endowment funds 
comprise the following resources which have been made available and which the trustees are legally required 
to retain or invest for specific charitable purposes. As these are permanent funds the trustees have no power 
to convert them into income and apply them as such.  The fund balances include funds transferred from The 
Women’s Housing Trust. These balances are included in the parent association. 

Date of acquisition            Original cost £000s Number of units

Liverpool Road 1910 324 247

Jubilee Cottages 1935 707 28

Palliser Road 1927 973 57

Dalmeny Avenue 1935 493 82

Beech House 1936 701 16

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Tangible fixed assets at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. 6,118 6,148 

Less Social Housing and other grants (5,609) (5,609)

509 539 

Investments at valuation 815 702 

1,324 1,241

2013 2012

£000s £000s

Income from lettings 1,534 1,474 

Less expenditure on letting activities (1,201) (1,058)

Surplus on letting activities 333 416 

Income from Investments 10 10 

343 426

Expenditure on letting activities comprises certain specific identifiable costs and overheads which have been 
apportioned on a consistent basis to the endowed properties.    

33. Contingencies
No contingent assets or contingent liabilities are recognised in these financial statements.

Fund balances are represented by

Net income from permanent endowed assets 
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